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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 42™ Annual General Meeting of the Members of Manipal Finance
Corporation Ltd. will be held on Friday, the 26" September, 2025 at 11.00 a.m. at the Company’s Regd.
Office: “Manipal House”, Manipal -576 104 Udupi District, Karnataka to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2025, statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Sri Tonse Narayan Madhava Pai [DIN 00101633] who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification(s), as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 Sri Tonse Narayan Madhava Pai (DIN 00101633) Managing
Director, who retires by rotation, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as a
Ordinary Resolution:

Appointment of Ms. Vinoda C. Sheriear as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder,
and pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR"), the approval of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Ms. Vinoda C. Sherigar (DIN:
07224755) as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation, with effect from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director (DIN: 00101633)
and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do
all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be necessary, including filings with the
Registrar of Companies and intimations to the Stock Exchanges, to give effect to this
resolution.”



4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass., with or without modifications, the following resolution as a
Ordinary Resolution.

Appointment of Mr. Hiriadka Mohandas as Independent Director

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the
Rules made thereunder, and in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”), and based on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the approval of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Hiriadka
Mohandas (DIN: 06926720) as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of five
consecutive years, who shall not be liable to retire by rotation, with effect from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director (DIN: 00101633)
and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, including filings with the
Registrar of Companies and intimations to the Stock Exchanges, to give effect to this
resolution.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

To consider and approve appointment of Cs. Ramachandra Bhat § (Membership No.4441) as

Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 24A and other
applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, CS Ramachandra Bhat S, Practicing Company
Secretary, Bengaluru (CP Number 5421), be and is hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company for a term of five consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting (“AGM?”) till the conclusion of the 47th AGM to be held in the year 2030, at such
remuneration and on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company (including its Committee(s) thereof) in consultation with the Secretarial Auditor.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, deeds, things and to sign all such documents and writings as may be necessary to give
effect to this resolution, including filing of necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and other
statutory authorities as may be required.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
Manipal House
Manipal 576 104
Date:12.08.2025 Sd/-
(T Narayan M Pai)
Managing Director
DIN: 00101633



1. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies Act,
2013, in respect of Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto and forms part of
this notice.

2. Pursuant to MCA Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy
to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of
the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate
can attend the AGM.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and MCA
Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will
be provided by CDSL.

4. Members holding shares in physical form can avail the nomination facility by filing Form
SH-13, as prescribed under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, with the Company. Members holding shares in demat form may contact their
respective Depository Participant(s) for availing this facility.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from 20.09.2025 to 26.09.2025 (both the days inclusive)

6. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company,
a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen
signatures authorising their representative(s) to attend andvote on their behalf at the
Meeting.

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participant with whom they are maintaining their demat account(s). Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN detailsto the Company’s Registrar
and Transfer Agent. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations (as amended),
requests for effecting transfer of securities, except in case of transmission or transposition
of securities, shall not be processed effective from April 01, 2019 unless the securities are
held in the dematerialized form. Hence, the Members holding equity shares of the
Company in physical form are requested to take action to dematerialize the same promptly.

8. All the relevant documents referred in this Notice shall be available for inspection by the
Members upto the date of 42™ Annual General Meeting electronically and the Member(s)
may send a request for inspection of documents to the Company (Email ID:
tnmpai @ mfgroupco.com) and mention the details of Folio No. or Client ID/DP ID wherein
the shares of the Company are held by the Member(s).



In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.mfgroupco.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock

Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM/ Notice is also disseminated
on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting
system during the AGM) i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

10. The Company has transferred the unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended

11

12.

31.03.1996 and 31.03.1997 to Investor Education and Protection Fund set up by theCentral
Govt. Those shareholders who have so far not claimed or collected their dividend upto the
aforesaid financial year may claim their dividend from Registrar of Companies, Karnataka,
Bangalore.

Members secking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the
Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at
the meeting.

The members are requested to get their shares dematerialized. The Company’s ISIN Code
INE798E01013 (CDSL & NSDL).

13. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate

14.

Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by the companies and has issued circulars
stating that service of notice/documents including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to
its members. To support this green initiative of the Government in full measure, members
are requested to register their e-mail addresses in respect of electronic holdings with the
Depository through their concerned Depository Participants.

(a) In accordance with the provision of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, the shareholders may exercise
their option to participate through electronic voting system and the Company is providing
the facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) to all its members. The Company has
engaged the services of Central Depository Services India Limited (CDSL) to provide e-
voting facilities and enabling the members to cast their vote in a secured manner. [t may be
noted that this e-voting facility is optional. This facility will be available at the link
www.evotingindia.com during the following voting period:




(if)

(i)

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding sharesin
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

The voting period begins on 23.09.2025 At 9.30 A.M and ends on 25.09.2025 at 05.00 P.M During
this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or indematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 19.09.2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 20135, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders™ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facilityto listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs
and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential,
through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account
holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not
only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in
e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.



Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individualshareholders
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

1)

2)

3)

4)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e- Voting
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and
click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user willbe able to see e-
Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all
e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the

user can visit the e-Voting service providers" website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting Ilink available on
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/Evotingl.ogin The system will authenticate the

user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also ableto directly access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1)

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e- Services
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under

“Login” which 1s available under., IDeAS" section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting™ under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e- Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at

https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on

the icon “Login™ which is available under “Shareholder/Member" section. A




new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you willbe redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote duringthe remote e-Voting period.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
(holding After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
securities in on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
demat mode) successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
login through company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
their to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote
Depository e-Voting period.

Participants

(DP)

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User [D/ Password are advised to useForget User ID
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for anytechnical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in logincan contact
securities in Demat mode with CDSL CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free

no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
securities in Demat mode with NSDL NSDL  helpdesk by sending a request  at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares inphysical mode
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v)  Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders otherthan
individual holding in Demat form.



1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

C. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Numberregistered
with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com andvoted
on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders
holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Sharcholders who have not wupdated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number
sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

Details e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
OR Date enter the member id / folio number in the

of Birth Dividend Bank details field.

(DOB)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach , Password Creation" menu

wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly
note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL

platform. It is strongly recommended not to




(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(vii)

share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your passwordconfidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-votingon the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modity your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify yourvote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on theVoting
page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by thesystem.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made

available to scrutinizer for verification.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For RemoteVoting
only.

e Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates”™ module.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e  After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote

on.



e The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be
delink in case of any wrong mapping.

e It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should
be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; thmpai@mfgroupco.com
(designated email address by company) , if they have voted from individual tab &
not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE
NO. ARE NOTREGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No.,
Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile
no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-
Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System,
you canwrite an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800
225533

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be
addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India)
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi
Marg, Lower Parel (East)), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Explanatory Note pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The following Explanatory Statements, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
set out all material facts relating to the business under Item Nos.2, 3 and 4 of the accompanying

Notice dated 12.8.2025

Item No.2

Sri Tonse Narayan Madhava Pai (DIN: 00101633), Managing Director of the Company,
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting in accordance with the
provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of
the Company. Being eligible, he has offered himself for re-appointment.



The Board of Directors considers that his continued association would be of immense
benefit to the Company, given his experience, guidance, and long-standing contribution to
the growth and business affairs of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice for
approval of the Members as a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives,
except Sri Tonse Narayan Madhava Pai himself, is concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 3:

Ms. Vinoda C. Sherigar had earlier served as an Independent Director of the Company for two
consecutive terms of five years each and ceased to hold office upon completion of her tenure in
accordance with Section 149(10) of the Act. Considering her continued valuable guidance and
expertise, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, appointed her as an Additional Director (Non-Independent / liable to retire by rotation).

Her appointment is now proposed for approval of the members. Ms. Sherigar has extensive
experience in finance, corporate governance, and management, which would benefit the Company.
She is not related to any other Director of the Company.

The Board recommends passing the resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. None of the Directors or
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except Ms. Sherigar, is concerned or
interested in this resolution.

Item No. 4:

Mr. Hiriadka Mohandas has been serving as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director on the
Board. Based on his qualifications, experience, and contributions, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee recommended his appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company.

Mr. Mohandas has submitted a declaration confirming that he meets the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR. In the opinion
of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and SEBI LODR for appointment as an
Independent Director.

Mr. Mohandas is seasoned banking and finance professional with over 50 years of progressive
experience across the banking and non-banking financial services (NBFC) sectors. He has held
leadership roles in credit and risk management, corporate lending, financial planning and business
development. The Board believes his experience will greatly benefit the Company and values his
continued guidance.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution for approval of the members as an Ordinary
Resolution. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives,
except Mr. Mohandas, is concerned or interested in this resolution.



Item No.5

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and
Regulation 24 A of the Listing Regulations, a listed entity shall appoint or re appoint an individual as
Secretarial Auditor, on the basis of the recommendation of the Board of Directors, for not more than
one term of five consecutive years or a Secretarial Audit firm as Secretarial Auditor for not more
than two terms of five consecutive years, with the approval of its shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.

CS Ramachandra Bhat S, Practicing Company Secretary, Bengaluru is currently the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company and as per Regulation 24A (1C) of the Listing Regulations, any association
of the individual or the firm as the Secretarial Auditor of the listed entity before March 31, 2025
shall not be considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure.

Accordingly, pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company at its meeting held on August 12, 2025, approved the appointment of CS Ramachandra
Bhat S, Practicing Company Secretary, Bengaluru (CP Number 5421), as the Secretarial Auditors of
the Company for a term of five consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of this AGM till
the conclusion of the 47th AGM to be held in the year 2030.

CS Ramachandra Bhat S is a reputed Company Secretary in whole time practice, specialized in
Secretarial Audit and other corporate law matters. He is registered with the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and has an experience of more than 22 years in providing various corporate law
services such as incorporation of companies and Limited Liability Partnerships, secretarial audit for
various listed companies, voluntary winding up of companies, acting as scrutinizer and appearances
before the National Company Law Tribunal on various matters on behalf of clients, etc. He also
holds a valid Peer Review Certificate.

CS Ramachandra Bhat S has given their consent to act as Secretarial Auditor of the Company and
confirmed that his aforesaid appointment (if made) would be within the limits specified by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. He is also confirmed that he is not disqualified to be
appointed as Secretarial Auditor and is in compliance with independence requirements as prescribed
under the Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, and other
applicable rules and regulations.

The remuneration payable to CS Ramachandra Bhat S for conducting the secretarial audit of
the Company shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company (including its
Committee(s) thereof) from time to time, together with reimbursement of applicable out-of-
pocket expenses. Any revision to the remuneration for subsequent financial year(s) during
the tenure shall be determined by the Board, as deemed appropriate, in accordance with
applicable laws and policies of the Company.

Further, the Company may obtain certifications and avail other permissible services under statutory
regulations from CS Ramachandra Bhat S, as may be required from time to time. The remuneration
for certifications and other permissible services will be paid on mutually agreed terms.



None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 5, for approval of the
Members of the Company by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
Manipal House
Manipal 576 104 Sd/-

Date:12.08.2025
(T Narayan M Pai)
Managing Director
DIN: 00101633



Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting :
[Pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)

Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings]

ANNEXURE TO ITEMS 2 OF THE NOTICE

Name of the Director Tonse Narayan Madhava
Pai

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00101633

Date of Birth 17.05.1943
Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 29.03.1984
Qualification B.Com
Shareholding in the Company 654872

List of Directorships held in other Companies (excluding foreign, private and Section 8
Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees across
Public Companies

Member : Stakeholders
Relationship Committee
Member: Audit Committee

There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members.

ANNEXURE TO ITEMS 3 OF THE NOTICE

Name of the Director Hiriadka Mohandas
Director Identification Number (DIN) 06926720
Date of Birth 26.8.1955
Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 30.03.2024
Qualification B.com

Shareholding in the Company

List of Directorships held in other Companies (excluding foreign, private and Section 8
Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit and Stakeholders® Relationship Committees across
Public Companies

Member : Stakeholders
Relationship Committee
Member: Audit Committee

There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members,




ANNEXURE TO ITEMS 4 OF THE NOTICE

Name of the Director

Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar

Director Identification Number (DIN) 07224755
Date of Birth 15.08.1964
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment on Board 29.06.2015
Qualification B.A

Shareholding in the Company

List of Directorships held in other Companies (excluding foreign, private and Section 8
Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees across
Public Companies

Member : Stakeholders
Relationship Committee
Member: Audit Committee

There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members,







Board’s report to the Shareholders

To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 42™ Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company
and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025.

1.Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

(Rs. In ‘000)
Particulars
31 March, 2025 31* March, 2024

Income 2235 2145
Expenses 4639 5076
’IF";;)ﬁ[ /(Loss) before Exceptional Items and 2404 2031
Exceptional Items - Income 74775 1534
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 72371 -1397
Balance of Loss b/f from previous year -527970 -526665
Net loss carried forward -455601 -527970

The company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (The Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Amended from time to time)
from April 1, 2019 and effective date of such transition is April 1, 2018. Such transition has been carried out from
the erstwhile Accounting Standards notified under the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under and guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) (collectively referred to as ‘the previous GAAP). The figures have been
presented in accordance with the format prescribed for financial statements for a Non Banking Finance Company
(NBFC) whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 in division II1 of Notification No. GSR 1022 (E) dated October, 11, 2018, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India.

2. State of Company’s affair

The present activity of the Company is restricted to recovery of dues and repayment of debits.

3. Dividend:

The Company has not declared any Dividend on equity shares, due to insufficient profit.

4. Reserves:

During the year, the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve Account.

5. Share Capital:

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31" March, 2025 was Rs.83810 thousand and Preference Share Capital of
Rs.29500 thousand. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights. It has neither issued
employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have any scheme to fund its employees to purchase the
shares of the Company.




6. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Sri Tonse Narayan Madhava Pai (DIN: 00101633), Managing Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-
appointment for the approval of the Members at the Annual General Meeting..

Ms. Vinoda C. Sherigar, who had been serving as an Independent Director of the Company for two consecutive
terms of five years each, ceased to be an Independent Director on completion of her tenure. Thereafter, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, she was appointed by the Board as an
Additional Director (Non-Executive, Non-Independent) of the Company with effect from 12th August, 2025, in
accordance with Sections 149 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. She holds office up to the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, and the Board has recommended her appointment as a Director liable to retire by rotation, subject
to approval of the members.

Mr. Hiriadka Mohandas, who was serving on the Board in the capacity of a Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director, resigned from the said position during the year. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board has proposed his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company for
a term of five consecutive years, in accordance with Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable SEBI (LODR) Regulations, subject to approval of the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

Your Directors place on record their appreciation of the valuable contributions and guidance extended by the

Directors in their respective roles.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Act the following are the Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company

Sr no. Name Designation

1. Mr. T Narayan M Pai Managing Director

2. Mr. Srikara Mallya Chief Financial Officer
3 Mr. Hari Shankar Shukla Company Secretary

7. Particulars of Emplovyees:

During the year under review, the Company had no employees whose remuneration exceeded the limit prescribed
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and subsequent amendments thereto.

Particulars of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn during the year 2024-2025
presented as an annexure to the Board Report during the Board Meeting is preserved separately and the same will be
made available to any shareholders on request made to the company in writing.

8. Meetings:

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. During the year, four Board Meetings
and four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

a. Board of Directors, Meetings of the Board/Committees/Annual General Meetings.

The Board comprised of four Directors, of which one is executive and three non-executives including a woman director.

The non-executive Directors are eminent personalities with experience in Management and Finance. The Board oversees as to how
the management serves and protects the long-term interest of all the stakeholders.




1)  Number of Board Meeting and Attendance of Directors:

The Board met four times during financial year 2024-2025. The details are as follows:

Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors present
30.05.2024 4 4
13.08.2024 4 4
14.11.2024 <} 4
12.02.2025 4 4

The last AGM was held on 10" September, 2024 and 3 out of 4 Directors are attended the AGM.

ii)  The Composition of Board of Directors, their directorships in other companies and memberships in committees and the
details of their attendance at the Board Meetings are given below:

SI | Name of the Category of No.of [ Attendance at No. of other| No.of Board
No. | Directors Directorships Meetings | last AGM directorship | committees in
attended which
Chairman(C)
Member(M)
1 Sri T Narayan M Promoter 3(C)
Pai Executive 4 Yes Nil
2. Sri Basthi Non-Executive
Ashok Pai Independent 4 Yes Nil 2(M)
3. | Smt Vinoda C Non-Executive
Sherigar Independent 4 No Nil 2(M)
4 Sri Hiriadka Non-Executive 4 No Nil 2(M)
Mohandas

b. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee comprised of the following members of the Board:

Sri T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director
Sri Basthi Ashok Pai, Member

Smt Vinoda C Sherigar, Member

Sri Hiriadka Mohandas, Member

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee cover the areas mentioned under Regulation 72 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013, besides other terms
referred to by the Board of Directors from time to time. During the year, the Committee met on 30.05.2024, 13.08.2024,
14.11.2024 and 12.02.2025. Sri T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the Compliance Officer.

Attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee Meeting:

Meeting held on No. of Members present
30.05.2024 4
13.08.2024 -4
14.11.2024 4
12.02.2025 4

c. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

This Committee will attend to the function relating to review of remuneration policy, changes to be effected in the policy from
time to time and other aspects of remuneration to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel from time to time.

Sri T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the only whole-time Director of the Company and he does not draw any remuneration,
Details of remuneration for the year ended 31* March, 2025:

i) Whole-Time Director: Nil




ii) Non-Executive Independent Directors: Smt. Vinoda C Sherigar, Non-Executive Independent Director is paid remuneration by
way of sitting fees for attending Board Meetings.

iii) Key Managerial Personnel: details of remuneration paid to Chief Financial Officer of the Company has been furnished in the
Annual Return (Form MGT-9).

d. Stakeholders Relationship Committee :

The Committee approves transfer, transmission, issue of duplicate Share, Debenture Certificates and Sub - Ordinated Debts,
review and redress shareholders grievances/complaints on matters relating to transfer of shares, debentures, sub-ordinated debts,
non-receipt of Balance Sheet etc.

Mr. T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the Compliance Officer.

Number of Shareholders Complaints received ! Nil
Number of Shareholders Complaints settled ; Nil
Number not solved to the satisfaction of the shareholders : Nil
Number of pending Share transfers : Nil

e. Annual General Meetings:

The last three Annual General Meetings were held in Regd. Office: “Manipal House™.- Manipal 576 104.

AGM Date Time Special Resolution required
No.
39 21/09/2022 3.00 p.m. Yes
40 29/09/2023 11.00 am. Yes
41 10.09.2024 11.00 a.m. Yes

All the resolutions as set out in the respective notices were passed by the shareholders.

9. Board Evaluation:

Pursuant to provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance, performance of the Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time schedule for the
Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors.

The Board’s functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including inter alia degree of fulfillment of key
responsibilities, Board structure and composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various
Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning. Directors were evaluated on aspects
such as attendance and contribution at Board/ Committee Meetings and guidance/ support to the management outside
Board/ Committee Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key aspects of his role, including
setting the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging active engagement by all Board members and motivating and
providing guidance to the Managing Director. Areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included
degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director
being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by
the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee also reviewed the performance of the Board, its Committees and of the Directors




10. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, does not
apply to your Company, as your Company’s equity share Capital and net worth is below the threshold limit
prescribed under the said Regulation. Hence, the Report on Corporate Governance is not provided. Part C ,
D & E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 are not
applicable since the company was having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crores and
net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crores, as on the last day of the previous financial year.

Part F Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 —
Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense Account — there are no shares
outstanding in demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

11. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
Review of Operations:

The Company is engaged in the business of Hire Purchase and Lease finance and has completed 42 years
of operation in this field. During the year 2024-2025, the Company has earned a net profit of Rs.72371
thousands as against the net loss of Rs.1397 thousands in the previous year 2023-2024.

Hire Purchase and Lease finance business is facing severe competition and margins are under great
pressure. In the aftermath of stringent Prudential Norms promulgated by the RBI, the NBFCs all across the
country suffered a severe setback. Their borrowing capacity is drastically curtailed. With no avenues for
further growth, together with ever increasing defaulters in the list of corporate clients, triggered the
downfall in the performance of the NBFCs. The situation that has arisen in your Company is in no way
different. In spite of these hurdles, the Company has tried its best to salvage the situation by reducing its
operational cost on all fronts.

The Company is putting in serious efforts to recover NPA accounts. Criminal complaints under Section
138 of Negotiable Instrument Act are also lodged simultaneously against such defaulters whose cheques
were dishonoured. The Company is making good progress on the Recovery Front.

The Company has appointed M/s. N P Pai & Co. Chartered Accountants, Udupi (Firm Regn No.
115271W) as its Internal Auditor.

The discussion on financial performance of the Company is covered in the Director's Report. There has
been no material development on the human resource front during the year. The number of employees
employed as on 31 March 2025 was 2.

The Company has already transferred amounts of unclaimed Debentures, unclaimed subordinated debts
and deposits with interest up to maturity to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

12. CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 34 OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10) (i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] a certificate received from a Company
Secretary in practice is enclosed as Annexure- I11.

13. Remuneration Policy & Managerial Remuneration:

None of the Directors of the Company, who may be a Managing or Whole-time Director of the Company’s, have
received any remuneration, including commission from the Company during the year.




None of the Directors of the Company have received any remuneration or commission from any Holding Company
or Subsidiary Company, service contracts, notice period, severance fees, fixed component and performance linked
incentives etc.

14. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies
15. Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company at its 39th AGM held on 21st September,
2022 had appointed M/s Sriramulu Naidu & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mangalore (Firm Registration
No0.008975S) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for period of five years till the conclusion of the
44t annual general meeting to be held in the year 2027.

a. In respect of the Qualification / Observation made by the Auditors vide “Basis for Qualified Opinion” ,
“Emphasis of the Matter”, and “other matters” Para 3, 4(e), 4(f), 4(g), 4 (j) (i) and 4(j)(iii) of the “Report on
other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of “Report on Financial Statements” and Clause Nos. (i), (v), (xvi)
and (xix) of Annexure “A” to the Auditors Report and Qualification given under Basis for Issues of
Qualified Opinion under Annexure “B” for the Auditors Report and the qualifications given in report in
relation to matters specified in Para 3 (A) and (B) as per master direction DNBS.PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17
issued by RBI dated 20" September, 2016, the clarifications given vide Note Nos.14.01, 18.01, 28.01, 28.08,
28.11, 28.14, 28.15 28.16, 28.23, 28.27 and 28.28 and Significant Accounting Policies, Key Accounting

Estimates and Judgments I, II (m) to the financial statement are self explanatory.

b. Inrespect of observations made by the Auditors with regard to the audit trial (edit log) facility as detailed in
Para 4 (j)(vi) of Report on the other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of Standalone Financial Statement
as detailed in Note No.28.27 of Standalone Financial Statement, the Board reiterate that the work is in
progress and the Management will ensure that the audit trial (edit log) facility will be maintained within a
reasonable time.

Secretarial Audit Report:

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Sri S Ramachandra Bhat, Practicing Company
Secretary (Membership No.04441, C P No.5421) from Bangalore has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor
of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as Annexure II to this report. As per Section
134 (3f) of the Companies Act 2013 Company is required to make comments on the adverse remarks /
comments on the Secretarial Auditor’s Report.

As per the Secretarial Auditor’s Report placed before the Board, the Secretarial Auditor have opined that the
company is a defaulter for non-payment of deposits/Debts accepted from the public as per the terms of
approval in compliance of the provisions of section 58A of the erstwhile Companies Act 1956 and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 1975.

The company has fully settled unclaimed debentures, subordinated debts and deposits except for disputed at
appropriate legal forums. The unclaimed amounts pertaining debentures, subordinated debts and deposits with
interest up to maturity have been transferred to IEPF on 29" March, 2022.

Your Directors reiterate that the company during the year 2021-22 has transferred unclaimed Debts/Deposits
and Debentures including Interest thereon amounting to Rs.2,55,25,779.00 to the INVESTOR EDUCATION
AND PROTECTION FUND of the Central Government pursuant to the provisions of Section 125(2) of the
companies Act 2013 during the year under report.

Further, as observed from the records, the company has fully repaid all its old dues payable towards
Debts/Deposits and Debentures as at 31.03.2025.




Internal Audit & Controls:

The Company has established and maintained adequate internal controls over the financial reporting. Internal
controls have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
Company has internal control system commensurate with the size and nature of the business. The Company
engages M/s. N P Pai & Co., Chartered Accountants, Udupi .(Firm Registration No.115271W / Membership
N0.039351) as its Internal Auditor. During the year, the Company continued to implement their
suggestions and recommendations to improve the control environment. Their scope of work includes
review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of operational efficiency,
effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas.
Internal Auditors findings are discussed and acted upon and suitable corrective actions taken as per
the directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

16. Vigil Mechanism :

The Company has adopted a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy.

17, Details of Fraud Report by Auditors:

As per auditors’ report, no fraud u/s 143(12) reported by the auditor.

18. Risk management policy

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Act and in pursuant
to provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. It establishes various levels of accountability and overview within
the Company, while vesting identified managers with responsibility for each significant risk.

The Internal Audit Department facilitates the execution of Risk Management Practices in the Company, in the areas
of risk identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting. Through this programme, each Function and
Unit addresses opportunities and risks through a comprehensive approach aligned to the Company’s objectives. The
Company has laid down procedures to inform the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors about risk
assessment and management procedures and status. Sustainability is embedded in the Corporate Enterprise Risk
Management programme, which gives an opportunity to increase the effectiveness of risk management practices and
for improving business efficiency. The Company’s social and environmental policies correlate strongly with the risk
management strategy and ultimately the financial performance. This risk management process, which is facilitated
by internal audit, covers risk identification, assessment, analysis and mitigation. Incorporating sustainability in the
process also helps to align potential exposures with the risk appetite and highlights risks associated with chosen
strategies. The current risk slate and the comprehensive risk policy have been further redefined during the year. The
major risks forming part of the Enterprise Risk Management process are linked to the audit universe and are covered
as part of the annual risk based audit plan.




19. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act,2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, an copy of annual return in MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website
www.mfgroupco.com (link: www.mfgroupco.com/Financials/Annual Return2025). As per provisions of Section
134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Annual return for financial year 2024-25 is placed on website of the
company i.e. www.mfgroupco.com.

20. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have

occurred between the end of the financial vear of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the
date of the report and changes in nature of business, if any:

There are no such material changes to be reported in this regard and there are no change in nature of business.

21. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future:

Your Directors wish to state that there have been no significant or material orders that were passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which may impact the going concern status and operations of the Company in
future.

22. Particulars of loans. guarantees or investments under Section 186:

Details of Loans: Not applicable to NBF Companies since same are given in the ordinary course of business. Further,
no loans are given to any party.

Details of Guarantee / Security Provided: : Not applicable to NBF Companies. However no such guarantee or
security provided.

Investments made are of the nature quoted /unquoted equity shares. Particulars of such investments are provided in
the financial statements vide note No.5.

23.Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreiegn exchange earnings and outgo:

The Company did not have any activity in relation to conservation of energy or technology absorption. The
Company had no foreign exchange earnings or outgoings during the year under report.

24. Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the
year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed.

25. Deposits:
The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act,-
(a) accepted during the year; Nil
(b) remained unpaid at the end of the year; Nil

(c) whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and if
so, number of such cases and the total amount involved:

(i) at the beginning of the year; Nil
(i1) maximum during the year; Nil
(iii) at the end of the year; Nil

The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Act;

26. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:




All related party transactions that were entered into were on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of
business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). There were
no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company during the year that would have
required shareholders approval under the provisions of the Act. Details of the transactions with related parties are
provided in the Note No0.28.09 of accompanying financial statements. Form AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h) of sub-
section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith
marked as Annexure I.

27. Compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the
financial year ended March 31, 2025:

e Number of complaints of sexual harassment received: Nil
e Number of complaints disposed of during the year: Nil
e Number of complaints pending for more than 90 days: Nil

The Company remains committed to providing a safe and respectful work environment for all its employees.

28.Compliance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Company has duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including those relating to
maternity leave, nursing breaks, and related benefits for eligible women employees. Awareness sessions and policy
guidelines have been communicated across the organization.

29. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) : Not applicable

30. Human Resources

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets.
Your Company continuously invest in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number
of programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is on the promotion

of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

31.Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, shall state that—

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period:

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors, in the case of a listed Company, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

32. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

The Company has during the financial year 2021-22. transferred all the unclaimed Debentures, Subordinated
Debts and Deposits with interest till maturity to Investor Education and Protection Fund.




33. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES:

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2025-2026 to Bombay Stock Exchange,
Mumbai where the Company’s Shares are listed.

34. Secretarial Standards

Secretarial Standards Pursuant to Section 118 of Companies Act, 2013, The Company has complied with all the
provisions of applicable Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

That is as follows: 1) Secretarial Standards — I for Board Meeting.
2) Secretarial Standards — II for General Meeting.

35. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

36. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

37. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

The 42™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company is being conducted in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™).

The Notice of the 42nd AGM and the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25, including the
Audited Financial Statements, are being sent electronically to the Members at their registered e-
mail addresses. The Annual Report will also be available on the website of the Company at
www.mfgroupco.com and on the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.

The Company is providing to all Members the facility of remote e-voting to enable them to cast
their votes electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice. This facility is being provided
pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014. The instructions for remote e-voting are provided in the Notice of
AGM. Members are requested to carefully read the instructions relating to participation in the 42nd
AGM and voting through electronic means, including remote e-voting.

The Board of Directors has appointed CS Ramachandra Bhat S, Practicing Company Secretary,
as the Scrutinizer to conduct the remote e-voting and voting at the AGM in a fair and transparent
manner.
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Annexure - [

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions
under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

The Company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements or transactions with its related parties which are not
at arm’s length basis during the financial year ended 31" March, 2025.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:
The Company has not entered into any material contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties at

arm’s length basis as covered under the third proviso to Section 188(1) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 during the financial year ended 31" March, 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Basthi Ashok Pai T Narayan M Pai
Director Managing Director
(DIN:08136975) (DIN: 00101633)

Place: Manipal
Date: 12.08.2025




Annexure II
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Manipal Finance Corporation Limited
REGD. OFFICE: "MANIPAL HOUSE"
MANIPAL - 57610 4 (Udupi Dist.)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Manipal Finance
Corporation Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in @ manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2025
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Manipal Finance Corporation Limited for the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings if any;

5. The Reserve bank of India Act 1934 and all guidelines and prudential norms
framed thereunder to an extent applicable;

6. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz. :-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Enforced from 1st December, 2015);




b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 (till 14th May, 2015) and The Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (Enforced from 15th
May, 2015);

¢c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

7. Income Tax Act, 1961
8. Karnataka Tax on Professions, Trade, Callings & Employment Act, 1976
9. Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
10.The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned
below:

1. The company consistently repaid its dues, Debts, Debentures and deposits over a
period of time and settled/repaid all liabilities. As observed from the records, the
company has transferred unclaimed Debts/Deposits and Debentures including
Interest thereon to the INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND of the
Central Government pursuant to the provisions of Section 125(2) of the companies
Act 2013.

We further report that

With respect to convening of Board meetings, adequate notice is given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.




Majority decision is carried through and there were no dissenting members for any item.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that we examined the records and documents on random basis and relied on
the Documents and eforms filed online by the company from time to time. Further, we report
that, we relied upon the soft copies/information shared with us by the company.

Further-:

a. The company has fully settled unclaimed debentures, unclaimed subordinated debts and
deposits except for cases disputed at appropriate Legal Forum. The unclaimed amounts
pertaining to Debentures and Subordinated Debts with interest upto maturity have been
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund in the year 2021-22. Accordingly,
there is no liability outstanding in the books as on 31.03.2025.

b. During the year under report, the company has sold 5,23,094 equity shares of Manipal
Housing Finance Limited to Mr. T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director for an overall
consideration of Rs.73,007 thousands. These shares have been sold at arm’s length
price after complying with the provisions as required under sec. 188 and sec 192 of the
Company's Act 2013.

c. We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of

e Public/Right/Preferential issue of equity shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc.

e Buy-back of securities.

« Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies
Act, 2013

« Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.

e Foreign technical collaborations

Sd/-

Ramachandra Bhat S,

Company Secretary

FCS No.:4441 C P No.:5421
Place: Bangalore
Date: 24.06.2025

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.

UDIN: F004441G000650295 PR NO 1345/2021




‘ANNEXURE A’
To,
The Members,
Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.
REGD. OFFICE: "MANIPAL HOUSE "
MANIPAL - 57610 4 (Udupi Dist.)

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
Ramachandra Bhat S,
Company Secretary
FCS No.:4441
C P No.:5421
Date: 24.06.2025
Place: Bangalore

UDIN: F004441G000650295 PRNO 1345/2021




WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR/ CFO CERTIFICATION

To

The Board of Directors
Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd,
Manipal- 576 104

We, Managing Director appointed in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company certify to the Board that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year and that to
the best of our knowledge and belief.
(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading.
(i1) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, laws and regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions are entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) That we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:

(i) No significant changes have taken place in internal control process during the year.
(ii)  No significant changes in accounting policies during the year.

For Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd

Sd/- Sd/-
Srikara Mallya T Narayan M Pai
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN:00101633)

Place: Manipal
Date: 30/05/2025



Annexure Il
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Manipal House

Manipal-576104

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORTION LIMITED having (CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988) and having registered
office at Manipal House, Manipal - 576104 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31% March 2025, have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

SI.No. | Name DIN Date of Appointment in
Company*

1 Mr. Narayan Thonse Madhava Pai 00101633 01/01/2008

2 Mrs. Vinoda Sherigar Chandappa 07224755 29/06/2015

3 Mr. Basthi Pai Ashok 08136975 30/05/2018

4 Mr. Hiriadka Mohandas 06926720 30/03/2024

*the date of appointment is as depicted in the MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
Sd/-
Ramachandra Bhat S,
Company Secretary
FCS No.:4441
C P No.:5421
Place: Bangalore
Date: 12.08.2025/01.09.2025

UDIN: FO04441G001132887 PR NO 1345/2021




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION
LIMITED (CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988) (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at
31% March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the loss and total
comprehensive income and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We draw attention to Note No.14.01, 28.01 and 28.26 of the financial statements. The Company has
incurred losses and its majority of funds are blocked in Non Performing Assets, raising a doubt about
the Company to continue as a going concern. The account, however have been prepared on a “going
concern basis” in view of management perception as detailed in Note No.28.01 as aforesaid. In this
connection, we are unable to comment on the ultimate realisability of the Company’s assets
including Property, Plant & Equipment under lease. Accordingly, we are also unable to comment on
the Company’s ability to settle its liabilities.

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the



Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

During the previous year 2021-22, the Company has remitted to the credit of Investors Education
and Protection Fund, all the unclaimed matured debentures and unclaimed matured subordinated
debts with interest till maturity as detailed in the aforesaid note, with the exception of the amount
involved in disputed cases (disputed before appropriate legal forum). The Company has disclosed
such disputed sum as “Other financial liabilities” in the audited statement of assets and liabilities,
with interest accrued till maturity. Our opinion is not modified in this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Except for the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ and ‘Emphasis of Matter’
section, we have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our
report.

Other Information (other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Corporate Governance Report (including shareholders information) and Schedule to Balance Sheet
of a Non-Banking Financial Company (as required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of Non-Banking
Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998) but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The above information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, the Corporate Governance
Report (including shareholders information) and Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking
Financial Company (as required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of Non-Banking Financial Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998), if we conclude that there is a material



misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion. The



risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial cantrols system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding the independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where, applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by the Master Direction DNBS PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29.09.2016
(RBI/DNBS/2016-17/48) issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Department of Non-Banking
Supervision Central Office we will be giving a statement of matters specified in paragraph 3(A) &
3(B) of the order at a later date.

In terms of press release issued by Reserve Bank of India dated 27.06.2001, we state that:

The Certificate of Registration as issued by the Reserve Bank of India is not in force, since same
was cancelled during December 2004.

The Company has not obtained credit rating.

The capital adequacy ratio is negative and accordingly the Company’s loans, advances and
investments are above the credit exposure limits.

The Company has not filed the prudential returns and annual returns as per revised directives.
However, the Company has filed such returns as per the directives as prevailed till 31st March
2011 i.e. prudential returns on half yearly basis and annual return once a year.

The public deposits have been fully repaid by the Company during the previous year ending 31
March 2022. The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits during the current year.

The Company does not have any outstanding deposits as on 31* March 2025 and accordingly the
question of creating floating charge in favor of the depositors, on the statutory liquid assets
invested does not arise.

The Company has not closed any of its branches during the year. Therefore, the question of
making any comments therein does not arise.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 4 (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.



(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(i)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Our Qualifications as given under paragraph titled “Basis for qualified opinion" may have
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company, if the management perception as detailed
in Note 28.01 of financial statement does not materialize. However, our observation as given
under paragraph titled “Emphasis of matter” will not have adverse effect on the functioning
of the Company.

The qualification/observations relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph”, and
“Emphasis of Matter paragraph” above.

The Management of the Company is of the opinion that its directors are not disqualified u/s
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31t March 2025 for the reasons as stated in Note
28.11 of the financial statements. Accordingly, the directors have given the written
representations as on 31° March 2025 that they are not disqualified to be the directors of
the Company u/s 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, which has been taken on record by the
Board of Directors. Accordingly, we are of the opinion that none of the directors of the
Company disqualified as on 31* March 2025 from being appointed as directors in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditors’ Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration to its directors, other than sitting
fees. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration (i.e. sitting fees) so paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has stated vide 28.10 and 28.29 of the financial statement that the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position is not ascertainable for the
reasons as stated in the aforesaid notes.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses, which has been confirmed by the
management vide Note 28.29 of the financial statement.



iii. The Company has transferred unclaimed amounts of debentures and subordinated
debts with interest upto maturity to the investor education and protection fund on
29th March, 2022 as given in Note 14 read with sub notes thereon.

A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or b)
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall a) directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or b) provide any guarantee,
security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

C) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv)(A) and ((iv)(B) contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Therefore,
commenting on compliance of Sec 123 of the Act does not arise.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and also disclosed by the
management vide note 28.27 of standalone financial statement, the Company has
used the accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which does not
have a feature of audit trail (edit log) facility.

For SRIRAMULU NAIDU & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration Number: 0089755
Place: MANIPAL
Date : 30" May 2025
Sd/-
CA Sriramulu Naidu
PARTNER
Membership Number: 018244
UDIN: 25018244BMGETZ6698



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Issued to the Members of
MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED)
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF EVEN DATE

(A)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

guantitative details and situation of fixed assets i.e. Property, Plant and
Equipment and Investment Property.

(B)

of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(a)(B)

We draw attention to Note 28.14 of the financial statements. According to the
information and explanations given to us the fixed assets i.e. Property, Plant and
Equipment other than those under lease and Investment Property, have been
physically verified by
discrepancies were noticed on such verification as compared to available records. In
respect of leased assets physical verification has not been done during the year.

the management

during

the

period and no material

According to the information given to us and on the basis of our examination, all title
deeds of free hold immovable properties are held in the name of the company except

the following:

Description | Gross Held in Whether Period held | Reason for

of property | carrying name of promoter, |- not

Value director or | indicate being held in

their range, name of
relative or | where company
employee | appropriate

Property, INR | Mr Teofilo | No 28th As disclosed

Plant and 2,060.90 | Eufemiano September, | by

Equipment thousands | Xavier Da 1995 Management

- land & Cruz Pinto vide Note

Building 28.16

The title deeds of lease hold immovable properties are supported by Memorandum of
agreement entered into with the lessor. We are informed that the original title deeds
in respect of immovable properties of land and buildings (both freehold and lease
hold), whose title deeds have been pledged as security for debentures, are lying with
the Debenture Trustee, as evidenced by the records produced before us and
accordingly, we have given our report as above, based on the examination of copies of
the above said documents.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. The Company does not
have intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition

of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.




vi.

vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories which
consist of shares and securities have been physically verified by the management
during the year at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancy was noticed on
physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to book records.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees from banks on the basis
of security of loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
Paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given loans,
made any investments or provided any guarantee or security during the year under audit.
Accordingly, the question of reporting on compliance of section 185 and 186 of the Act does not
arise. Therefore, the paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
complied with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the provision of Section 73 to
76 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014 and Non Banking
Financial Companies (Reserve Bank Directions) with regard to acceptance of deposit from public.
Further, the Company has not accepted/renewed deposits/debentures/subordinated debts
during the year under audit and has fully repaid the public deposits/ debentures/subordinated
debts during the financial year 2021-22 by way of repayment/transfer to Investor Education and
Protection Fund except for disputed amounts of INR 206 thousands which is pending before
Consumer Courts. As evident by the records produced before us and as per the information and
explanation given to us by the management , the Company has not received any order by
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or
any other Tribunal in respect of deposits, except the orders from various Consumer Courts
(including the Appellate Authorities/Courts acting upon under Consumer Protection Act) as
stated above. We are informed that the Company will comply with the orders issued by the
Consumer Courts as and when it is received.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records u/s 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the Company. Therefore, the question of making any comments as
required under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order does not arise.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the record of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess, and
other material statutory dues (if payable by the Company) have been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods
and Services Tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.



viii.

(b)

According to the records of the company made available to us and as per the
information and explanations given, there are no statutory dues of provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs, cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as income during the year

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

Based on our audit and according to the information and the explanations given to us,
we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has transferred unclaimed amounts of debentures and subordinated
debts with interest upto maturity to the investor education and protection fund on
29th March, 2022 except the disputed amounts at legal forums amounting to INR 206
thousands as given in Note 14 read with sub notes thereon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared as
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government or Government
Authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans from financial
institutions during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the procedures
performed by us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company,
we report that no funds raised on short term basis has been used for long term
purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the
order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of
the order is not applicable.



Xi

Xii

Xiii

Xiv

XV

XVi

(a)

(b)

(c)

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality
outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit

According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government,

According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no whistle
blower complaints received by the company during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act wherever applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a)

(b)

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provision of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Company was registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. However, the Certificate of Registration as issued by the Reserve Bank of India is
not in force, since same was cancelled during December 2004.

The present activity of the Company is restricted to recovery of dues and repayment of
debts. During the year, the Company has not renewed or accepted any fresh deposits.
Accordingly, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities
during the year. Further, the Company has also not conducted any Housing Finance
activities.

The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(d) is not
applicable.



xvii  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and has incurred cash loss of
INR 1,237 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
reporting under paragraph 3(xviii) does not arise.

xix ~ We draw attention to Note 28.01 of the financial statements. The Company has incurred losses
and its majority of funds are blocked in Non Performing Assets, raising a doubt about the
Company to continue as a going concern. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and in view of the management perception as stated in Note
28.01 of the financial statements, we are unable to comment on the Company’s capability of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

XX The provisions of CSR is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Therefore,
paragraph 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

Xi

Place: MANIPAL
Date: May 30, 2025

For SRIRAMULU NAIDU & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Registration Number: 008975S

Sd/-

CA SRIRAMULU NAIDU
PARTNER
Membership Number: 018244
UDIN: 25018244BMGETZ6698



ANNEXURE “B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Issued to the Members of MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED)
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 3(h) UNDER THE HEADING

“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF EVEN DATE

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (h) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Manipal Finance
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
standards on Auditing, issued by ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the



assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention of timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for issue of qualified opinion

We draw attention to Note 28.14 of the Financial Statements. The Company has not verified the
Fixed Assets i.e. Property, Plant and Equipments under lease falling under the head “leased
machineries and equipment” & “leased vehicles and furniture” of Note 9 of the Financial Statement.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31** March 2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria



established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants Of India.

For SRIRAMULU NAIDU & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Registration Number: 008975S
PLACE: Manipal
DATE : 30" May, 2025

sd/-

CA SRIRAMULU NAIDU
Partner

Membership No. 018244
UDIN: 25018244BMGETZ6698



MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLCO0S988

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. in thousands)
: For the year ended For the year ended
REERETER March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
1 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

Profit before tax 72.371 (1.397)
Ind AS adjustments
Rental income (Ind AS adjustment) (53) (54)
Interest expense (Ind AS adjustment) 50 59

72,366 (1.392)
Exceptional items (74,775) (1,534)
Gratuity Fund (Income )/Reversal of Provision 3 13
Interest income - -
Dividend mcome (344) (343)
Interest on income tax refund (6) 5
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 155 155
Operating profit before working capital changes (2.601) (3,105)
Movements in working capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in loans - -
Decrease/(Increase ) in receivables, other financial assets and other-non financial assets 1,545 1.525
Increase/(Decrease ) in payables (108) (2)
Increase/(Decrease ) in other financial liabilities (73.162) (1.579)
Increase/(Decrease ) in other non-financial liabilities (17) 1
Cash generated from operations (74.342) {3.160)
Interest paid s -
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (16) (15)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (A) (74,358) (3,175)

Il CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Reciept / (Payment) of lease security deposit (25) -
Interest income 6 5
Proceeds from sale of unquoted equity shares 80.034
Decrease/(Increase) in bank deposits 0 -
Dividend income 344 343
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B) 80,359 348
1 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES

Proceeds from borrowings (6,169) 2.839
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C) {6,169) 2,839
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (168) 12
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 278 266
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 110 278

Notes 1 to 28 and 'Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements' form an integral part of the financial statements

NOTE: I Cash Flow Statement 1s prepared under Indirect Method as prescribed under Ind AS 7.

II. Cash And Cash Equivalents do not include Bank Deposits with Maturity period beyvond 3 Months, Earmarked Deposits, Deposits Kept as Margin

Money.
IT1. Refer Note 28.13 to Financial Statements for further disclosures in relation to Cash Flow Statement

As per our report of even date

For M/s Sriramulu Naidu & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. ; 0089758

Sd/-
CA Sriramulu Naidu
Partner
Membership No. : 018244
UDIN: 25018244BMGETZ6698
Manipal
30-May-25

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

Sdi-
T. Narayan M Pai
Managing Director
DIN: 00101633

Sd-
Srikara Mallya
Chief Finance Officer

Maripal
30-May-25

Nid/-
Vinoda Sherigar
Director
DIN: 07224755

Sd/-
Hari Shankar Shukla

Company Secretary
M. No. : A67963

Manipal
30-May-25




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORA TION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA 1984PLCO0S988
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. in thousands)|

Particulars

Note

Asat
Mareh 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

ASSETS

(1) Financial Assets
() Cash and Cash Equivalents
(13} Bank Balances other than {a) above
(c) Derivative Fmancial Instnments
(d} Recervables
(1) Trade Receivables
(11} Other Recervables
(&) Loans
() Investinents
(g} Other Financial Asaets
Total Financial Assets

(2) Non-Financial Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net)

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

(d} Imvestment Property

(2} Biclogical Assets other than Bearer Plants
(£) Property, Plant and Equipment

() Capital Work-m-Progress

(1) Intangible Asets under Development
(1)} Goodwall

() Other Intangible Assets

(k) Other Non-Fmaneial Assets

Total Non-Financial Assets

B

@

110
T6H

a7
847

78
76

6,869
896

1.140

8,119

191

Total Assets

16,425

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Derrvative Fuancial Instnunents
(1) Payabiles
(1) Trade Pavables
- Total entstanding dues of macro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprses and small enterprises
(u} Other Payables
- Total outstandng dues of mucro enterprses and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(o) Debt Securities
() Borrowmgs (Cther than Debl Securitics)
(&) Deposits
() Subordeated Linbaities
(2} Otheer Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

(2) Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) Curent Tax Liabilities (Net)
(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred Tax Liatalities (Net)
() Other Non-Fmaneial Liabilites
Total Non-Financial Liabilities

|EQUITY

(o)} Equity Share Capital
(b Other Equity

Total Equity

9,474

29,500
6,505

15,643
20,500
79.643

45,839

a8

40,151

125,254

8

40,273

40,239

83,810
(160,581 )

40,311

83810
[232.950)

(76,771}

(149,140)

Total Liabilities and Equity

9,307

16,425

As per our report of even date

For M/s Sriramulu Naidu & Co
Chartered Accountants

Fum Registration Neo. @ (089738

Sd/-
CA Sriramulu Naidu

Partner

hlembership Mo, @ 018244
UDIN: 2501 8244BMGET Z6698

Mampal
30-May-25

For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of

MMani

Motes | to 28 and 'Sigmficant sccounting policies and key acecunting estimates and judgements' form an mtegral part of the financial statements

pal Finance Corp

Limited

Sd/-

T. Narayan M Pai
Janaging Director
DIN: 00101633

Sdi-
Srikara Mallya
Chief Finanee Officer

Manmpal
30-May-25

Sdi-
Vinoda Sherigar
Dhrector
DIN: 07224755

Hari Shankar Shukla
Company Secretary
M Mo ; AGT963

Marupal
30-May-25
—




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L63910KA 1984 FL.CO05988
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Rs. in thousands)}
For the year ended For the year ended
L ions bl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Revenue from Operations:
(1) Interast Income 19 - -
(i) Dividend Incoms 20 344 343
{ur) Rental Inccme 21 1.E30 1,743
{iv) Fees and Comirission Income = =
o Met Gamn on Fair Value Changes = E
Vi) Met Gam on Derecogrution of Finaneial Instruments wnder Ainortised Cost Category - -
(v} Sale of Procets (inchndng Exeise Duty) = =
{viil} Sale of Services - -
{ix) Others . 5
Total Revenue from Operations (T) 2,174 2086
n Other Income 22 61 B
1 Total Income (1+1T} 2,235 2,145
v Expenses:
(i} Fmanee Costs 3 1,799 1.854
(i} Fees and Comimission Expense 2 =
{m) Met Loss on Far Value Changes -
{v) Net Loss on Derecogrition of Financial Instruments under Amertised Cost Category
(v) Ienpairmentt of Finaneial Instruments -
(Vi) Cost of Materials Consmned
(vir) Pwchasss of Stock-in-Trade = =
{viid) Cluanges in Iiventones of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress - -
() Employze Bensfits Expenses 24 465 TRG
(9] Depraciation, Amortisation and Inpagment 25 155 155
() Other Expenses 26 2220 2,281
Total Expenses (TV) 4,639 5076
v (Loss) before Exceptiomal Trems and Tax (ITETV) (2,404 (2,931)
VI Exceptional Items - Income (Net) a7 74,775 1534
VII  Profit before Tax (V-VT) 73371 (1,397)
vin Tax Expense:
(1) Crrrend Tax -
(2} Defereed Tax - -
Met Tax Expense = E
IX Profit for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIIL 72371 {1,397)
X Prefit from discontinsed operatons before tax - -
XI Tax Expase of discontimmed operations = =
X1 Profit from discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI) - -
X1l Profit for the year (EX+XIT) TL3T (1,397)
Xiv Other Comprehensive Income:
A (1) Itemes that will not be reclassified subssquently to Statement of Profit and Loss
- Remeasurement of Defined Employes Benefit Plans 27TA (2) 15
(1) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss -
Subtotal (A) 2) 15
B (8} e Mt will be reclassifisd subsequently (o Statemend of Profit and Loss
- Fair Value Gain on Financial Assets carried al FVTOCT E 2
(1) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss -
Subtotal (B) . :
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Losses) (A+B) (XIV) (2 15
e Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XITH-XIV){Comprising Profit and Other
XN Comprehensive Income for the year) 7236 (1,382)
XVI Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) { Rs 10/ each fully paid)
(1) Basic 27B 8.64 (0.16)]
(2) Dihed 278 864 (0.16)]
v Earnings per equity share (for discontinuing operations) (Rs 10/- each fully paid)
(1) Basic 278 8.64 0.16)
(2) Dihsted 178 R.64 (0.16)
XVIn Earnings per equity share (for continuing & discontinued operations) (Rs 10/~ each fully paid)
(1) Basic 278 B.64 .16
7) Dilued 178 864 (®.16)]
Motes | to 28 and 'Significart accounting policizs and key accounhing estimates and judgements' form an integral part of the financial statemnents
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For M/s Sriramula Naidu & Co Manipal Fimnce Corporation Limited
Chartared Accountants
Fum Regatration Mo, 0089755
Sil- sd-
T. Narayan M Pai Vinnda Sherigar
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AL Equity share capital

i1} Current reporting period

MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L6591 0EA 1954PLOIMS988

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Hs. in thousands)

Balanee at the beginning of the
ourrent reporting period

Changes in equity Shace Capital doe
period e

| Restated halance af the
Tseginmdneg of the current
vepariing period

Changes in equity Share Capital doring the
urrent year

Balance at the end
of the current
veporting period

23.810.00

= 83,8100

#3.810.00

2} Previous reporting period

Balmrce al the beglibng of e
previons reporting period

Changes in equity Share Capital due to prior
perlod erroes

TRestated batance at the
e ghnunng of O

[ evious reporting
prricd

Changes in equity Share Capital during the

evions year

Balance at the end
of the previos
repaorting period

SE810.00

B3810.00

§3,810.00

B. Other equity

L © porting period

(R In theusands)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

s Premium

Capital Redemption

General Reserve
Reserve

Statutory Feserve Retained Earnings

Total

[Balance at the begmnmg of the current
reponting peviod

(Changes in accounting policy o prioe
period ernoes

Restated balance at the beginning of
Total Comgrehensive [neone for the
current vear

[Rancasicment of gains/(loss) on
defined benefit obligation planz, net of
e effiect

Dividends

Transter 1o retained earmigs

[ Any cther change

Balance ot the end of the corrent

reporting period

18,095

260,019 1906

LRI (3279709

(242.050)

28,995

260,119

4,000 (527,970}

= 2371

2y

(232,050)

25,995

260,119

A, (455,601)

{160.581)

Previous veporting period
[ e ot heperae
renorting neriod
(Changes in accounting policy of prior
poriod aroes
[Restated balance at the beginning of
Tatal Comprehensve Income for the
[previous year
Remeasurement of gaine/(loss) on
[defined benefit ob ligation pitans, nes of
1ax effect
Drividends
Transter boretained eamimas
Ay other change
Balance at the end of the previsus
reporting period

18,995

260,114 1906

(5206, 55%) |

(231.568)

25,995

60119

4,000 (526,588)

{1,397}

(131.5085)
{1397}

24,995

Z60.11%

4.0 (527,970

(232,950)
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MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910K A1984PLCO0SI8S
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Refor Note 1.01)

(Rs. in thousands)|
|5r No. Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
1. |CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(&) Cash on hand & o
(b) Balances with barks mn current accounts 104 271
Total 110 278

Note 1.01 Babnees with banks eamn mterest at foved rates. Cash and cash equivalents do not include term deposits kept with a matunty period of beyond 3 months, earmarked balances with banks and bank deposits held as

margm money of security agamst borrowmgs ete. The same are being disclosed in Note No. 2 below.

2. |OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS
(Refer Note 2.01 & 2.02)
Falances with hanks m deposit acconnis 76 76
Total 76 76
Note 2.01  Frced deposits with banks eam miterest af fived rates Ot of the above,
a} Bs. 66 thousand (Maveh 31, 2024 - Rs.66 thovsand) has been pledged with the sales tax authorities
Note 2.02  The fixed deposits as stated above have a matunty pertod of above 12 months.
3. |TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Refer Note 3.01 to 3.06)
(a) Receivables considered good - secured & %
(b) Recemvables conssdered good - 1nsecured =
(c) Receivables which have significant merease in credit rek - unsecured - -
(d} Recervables - credit impamred - wnsecured 6115 6115
6115 6115
Less: Allowance for mpairment loss
(2} Sigiuficant merease m evedit risk - =
(b) Credit mpared 6,115 6115
Total - -
Note 3.01  The trade recervables melude the due porton of lease and hare purchase, which are already matured.
Note 3.02  No trace recewvable = due from drectors or other officers of the Company either severally or jomtly with any other person. No trade récervable i due from firms or private companies respectively, n which amy
director 1 partner, a director or a member.
Note 3.03  The balances in trade recevables are subject to confirmation.
Note 3.04  For the Company's imparment policy related to trade recervables, refer note 28,12 of Foancial statements
Note 3.05  Refer Note 28.03 of Fi il for discloswres repardmg credit risk.
Note 3.06  Ageing of trade recevables (before impainnent allowance)
As at 31st March, 2025
Outstanding for following perinds from due date of payment
Particulars Unbileg | 1N0¢ due for g il = Total
payment
Less thim 6 0 monthy - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months Year - = 2
1. Undisputed trade recervables - comsidered good - - - - - - - -
n Undesputed trade recenvables - winch have sgificant merease m
credit rak 3 ) 3 - - B B )
m Undisputed trade recenvables - credit mnpared - - - - - - 6115 G115
v. Disputed trade recemvables - considered good - - - - - - -
v. Disputed trade receivables - which have sigrificant increase m credit
tigk i . . .
vi Disputed trade recevables - credit impaired - - - - - - E
Gross = = = = = z 6,115 6,115
As at 31st March, 2024
. . Not due for O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Less than 6| 6 months - 1 Total
payment 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months year = £
1._Lindisputed trade recervables - comsidered good - - - - - -
. Undisputed trade recenvables - which have sgmificant merease m
credit 1sk B ) B _ ~ B ~ _
w_Undsputed trade recervables - credit mipared - - - - - - 6,115 G115
wv. Disputed wade recevables - corsidered good - - - - - -
v. Disputed trade receivables - wlach have sigiificant inerease m eredit .. s v 2 5 i i =
115k
vi Disputed trade recenvables - eredit impaired - - = - - - -
Gross = £ = = = = 6,115 6,115
Note: The balanee m Trade Recewvables have been fully provided for and therefore the canymg value s Nil
(Rs In Thousands)|
Reconciliation of impairment allowance 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Crpering unpatrment allowance 6115 6115
Addition{ Reduetion) during the year * - -
Closing imparment allowance 6115 6,115

* Addition or reduction durme the vear is on account of recoveries made and’or write offz,




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA 1984PL.C0O05988

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. in thousands)

l\SI’;. Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
4. |LOANS
(Refer Note 4.01 to 4.06)
(A)
- Amortised Cost
(1) Bills discounted - -
(1) Term loans 205,488 205,488
205,488 205,488
Less: Impairment loss allowance 205,488 205,488
Total (A) - -
(B)
- Amortised Cost
(1) Secured by tangible assets
Secured by book debts 1,932 1,932
(11) Unsecured 203,556 203,556
205,488 205,488
Less: Impairment loss allowance 205,488 205,488
Total (B) - -
©
- Loans in India
- Amortised Cost
(1) Others
Retail 1,386 1,386
Corporate 204,102 204,102
2005,488 205,488
Less: Impairment loss allowance 205,488 205,488
Total (C) = -
Note 4.01 The Company had assigned under an assignment deed certain debts and recoverables consisting inter alia stock on hire

Note 4.02

Note 4.03
Note 4.04
Note 4.05
Note 4.06

along with equal liabilities of the Company to the extent of Rs. 2.66,292 thousand on 30.09.1998 to Vedachala
Electronics & Financial Services Private Limited (VEFSPL). The Company had discharged the assigned liabilities of]
VEFSPL on its failure to service the same in terms of the Assignment deed, which has resulted in Rs. 2.03.556
thousand (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 2.03,556 thousand ) receivable from VEFSPL. The Company based on the estimated
recovery has made a provision of Rs. 2,03,556 thousand (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 2.03,556 thousand) against the
receivables of VEFSPL. The same has been classified above as unsecured term loan from India, measured at
amortised cost.

No Loans is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. No
Loans is due from firms or private companies respectively, in which any director is partner, a director or a member.

The balances given above are subject to confirmation.
Refer Note 28.12 of Financial statements for information regarding impairment of assets.
Refere Note 28.03 of Financials statements for disclosures regarding credit risk.
The disclosures required under section 186 (4) of Companies act 2013 are not applicable to a NBFC.
(Rs. In thousands)

Reconciliation of impairment allowance 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Opening impairment allowance 205.488 205,488
Addition/(Reduction) during the year * - -
Closing impairment allowance 205488 205,488

* Addition or reduction during the year is on account of recoveries made and/or write offs.




NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC00S988

(Rs. in thousands)

:;_ Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
5. |INVESTMENTS

(Refer Note 5.01 to 5.04)

In India- carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

(a) Fully paid equity shares (quoted) 1 1
(b) Fully paid equity shares (unquoted) 105 6.867
(c¢) Investment in Preference Shares 1 1
Total 107 6,869

Note 5.01 Out of the above. the fully paid equity shares (quoted) are held-for-trading and the fully paid equity shares (unquoted) and|

Note 5.02
Note 5.03

Note 5.04

(a)

(b)

(c)

preference shares are held as long term investments.
The Company received Rs.344 thousands (2023-24 - Rs. 343 thousands) as dividend from the above investments.

For the Company's policy on impairment of investments, retfer Note No. 28.12 of Financial statements.
The company has sold 5.23.094 equity shares of Manipal Housing Finance Limited to the Managing Director Mr. T Naravan
M Pai for an overall consideration of Rs. 73,007 thousands. These shares have been sold at arms length price after complying

with the provisions as required under sec. 188 and sec 192 of the Company's Act 2013

(Rs. in thousands)

Particulars | AsatMarch31,2025 |  Asat March 31, 2024
Equity Instruments (Quoted
ICDS Limited (53,531 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 each) * *
Praman Capital Market Services Limited (10.000 shares of & 5
Face Value Rs. 10 each)
Arvind Limited (9 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 each) * *
Modern Threads (I) Limited (150 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 % 2
each)
Rajinder Steel Limited (100 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 cach) * *
Lloyds Steel Industries Limited (68 shares of Face Value Rs. 1 1
10 each)
Uttam Value Steels Limited (500 shares of Face Value Rs. | i %
each)
Sangeetha Granites Limited (500 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 4 i
each)
1 1
(* market value of these shares is taken as 'nil' since these shares are not actively traded)
Equity Instruments (Unquoted
Manipal Housing Finance Syndicate Limited (PY 5.23.094 B 6.762
shares of Face value Rs. 10 each) |
Karnataka Rubbers Limited (50 shares of Face Value Rs. 100
each)
Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited (1,000 shares of 25 25
Face Value Rs. 25 each) <
MPL Enterprises Limited (13,382 shares of Face Value of Rs.
80 80
10 each)
105 6.867
Preference Shares (Unguoted)
Trivem Engineering & Industries Ltd. (12% redeemable 1 1
cumulative} (30 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 each)




[ 1]

Note 5.05 |The above list of shares is to be considered as disclosure under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013,




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. in thousands)

Sr No. Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
6. |OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Refer Note 6.01 & 6.02)
Other receivables 847 896
Total 847 896
Note 6.01  The balance in 'Other receivables' includes deposits kept in pursuance of orders of the Consumer Courts.
Note 6.02  No Receivables is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. No

Receivables is due from firms or private companies respectively. in which any director is partner. a director or a member.

7. |[CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance Income Tax and TDS (net of provisions) 207 191

[net of provision for income tax Rs. NIL (March 31. 2024 - Rs. NIL)]

Total 207 191

8. |INVESTMENT PROPERTY

(Refer Note 8.01 to 8.08)

Buildings

Gross Block

Opening Balance 2.325 2325

Additions/Disposals - -

Closing Balance 2325 2,325

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Opening Balance 362 302

For the year 60 60

Additions/Disposals s =

Closing Balance 422 362

Net Block 1,903 1,963

Note 8.01  The original cost of Investment Property as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 3,839 thousands (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 3.839 thousand)

Note 8.02  The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property. However. the responsibilty for its
repairs, maintenance or enhancements is with the Company.

Note 8.03  Carrying value of Investment property pledged as collateral for liabilities or commitments as at March 31. 2025 is Rs. 353 thousand
(March 31. 2024- Rs. 365 thousand ).

Note 8.04  Investment properties are leased out to tenants. Agreements provide for cancellation by either party or contain clause for escalation
and renewal of agreements. Investment Property includes property agreed to be sold as detailed in Note No. 16.

Note 8.05  Disclosures with regard to Measurement, Depreciation Method ete. of Investment property 1s given vide sub-note (e) of Significant
Accounting Policies. Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements.

Note 8.06  Refer Note 28.12 of Financial statements for company's policy on impairment

Note 8.07  The management has not assessed the fair value of the the investment properties considering the cost involved therein. However
management is of the opinion that the carrying value does not exceed the fair value of the asset considering the fact that the
mvestment in property was made more than two decades ago and the value of the property has increased over the period.

(Rs. In thousands)

Note 8.08
Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended
for Investment Property March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rental income 1.830 1.743
Direct operating expenses from properties that generated rental income 450 218
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 1,380 1,525
Depreciation 60 60
Profit from investment properties 1,320 1,465




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLCOD59SS
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

9.

[PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Refer Note 9.01 10 9.09) (Rs. in thousands)
Gross Block Accumulated depreciation and amortisation Net Carrying Value
Particulars Opening balance as|  Additions/ Deletions Closing balance as at| Opening balance as Aﬂm;g:r}or Deletions’ | Closing balance as | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
at April 1, 2024 | Adjustments March 31. 2025 at April 1. 2024 eyese Adjustments | at March 31, 2025 2025 2024
OWN ASSETS
Land- Frechold 260 - 260 - - - 260 260
Buildings- Freehold 4,023 - 4,023 570 93 - 663 3,358 3,453
Office Furntivres and Fixtures 354 - 354 - - - 354 354
Office Equipments 43 - 43 - - - 43 43
Assets given on lease:
Leased Machinerics and Equipments L1671 - L671 - - - L671 1671
Leased Vehicles and Furnitures 2 - 2 - - = 2 2
Total 6,353 - 6,353 570 95 - 665 5,688 5,783




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLCOD59SS
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. in th is)
Gross Block Accumulated depreciation and amortisati Net Carrying Value
Particulars Opening balance as | Additions/ [ . = |Closing balance as at| Opening balance as N?q’;‘,"":’.“"“f‘; Deletions/ | Closing balance as | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
at April 1,2023 | Adjustments March 31,2024 | at April 1, 2023 ‘“lh:;;:r“ "| Adjustments | at March 31, 2024 2024 2023
OWN ASSETS
Land- Frechold 260 - - 260 - - - 260 260
Buildings- Frechold 4,023 - - 4,023 475 95 - 570 3,453 3,548
Office Furntiures and Fixtures 354 - - 354 - - - 354 354
Office Equipments 43 = - 43 = = - 43 43
Assets given on lease
Leased M ies and Equipment 1,671 . - 1,671 - - - 1,671 1.671
Leased Vehicles and Furnitures 2 - - 2 5 % c 2 2
Total 6,353 - - 6,353 475 95 - 570 5,783 5,878
Note 9.01 The original cost of Property, Plant and Equipment as on 31 March, 2025 is Rs. 1,935,333 thousands.
Note 902 For the Company's policy on measurement. depreciation method ete., refer sub note (d) of Significant accounting policies. Key accounting estunates and judgments.
Note 9.03 Building (frechold) mcludes property, plant and equipment given on lease. Leased machinery and equipment and leased velicles and furniture represent property, plant and equipment given on lease.
Note 9.04 Carrying value of property, plant and equipment pledged as collateral for liabilities or commitments as at March 31, 2025 1s Rs. 3,506 thousand (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 3,601 thousand).
Note 9.05 Land and Building (frechold) and Investment Property as per Note 8 mcludes the property agreed to be sold as detailed in Note No. 16.
Note 9.06 For details regarding charges on property, plant and equipment, refer Note No. 14.02,
Note 9.07 No borrowing cost was mewrred towards any qualifying asset. Hence, no borrowing cost is bemg capitalised during the reporting period.
Note 0.08 Refer Note 28.12 of Financial statements for company's policy on impairment,
Note 9.09 The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024




MARTPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
DMANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 5% 104

| Lesa; CO0RaRE
NOTES FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENTED MARCH 31, 2085
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MARTPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
DMANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 5% 104

| Lefa1oRALMAPL COotaRs
NOTES FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENTED MARCH $1, 2085
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MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLCO05988
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Rs in thousands)

SrNao.

17

PARTICULARS Asat March 31, 2025 | Asat March 31, 2024

SHARE CAPITAL

{Refer Note 17.01 to 17.08)

AUTHORISED

G0L00,000 (FY-90,00,000) Equty Shares of Rs, 10 cach 90,000 L0000

?IL:.i:L}n.i].:UI} (Y 60000000 Nor-Comulative Redeemable Preferencs Shares of Rs 60,000 60000

150,000 150,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP

83.80.961 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach, fully pad up

(March 31, 2022 83,80,.961) 83810 83810

Total #3810 H3810

Note 17.01 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding:

Particulars No. of shares Rs. in thousands
Equity Sk
Opening balance as on April 01, 2024 8,380,961 83810
Changes durng the year - .
Closmyg Balance as on March 31, 2025 8,380,961 83810
Clunges durig the vear - -
|Closin§ Balance as on March 31, 2025 8,380,961 83,810

Note 17.02 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

Equity Shares ; The equity shares are having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per each share held. The dividend if any, proposad by the Board of
Drrectors is subject to the approval of the shareholdars n the ensuing Annual Genzral Meeting, except m the case of interim dividend. In the event of iquidation, the equity sharcholders are
elgible to receve the temaning assets of the Company (afier distnbunon of all praferential amounts) in proportion to their sharsholding

Note 17.03 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Equity Shares

M/s TVP Consultants Lumsted, Chennai - 6,723,225 shares (March 31, 2024- 6,732,225 shaves) { Shareholding percentage - 8.02% (March 31, 2024 - 8.02%)),
Mr Narayan Pai T, Manipal - 6,535,282 shares (March 31, 2024 - 6,55,282 sha {Shareholding percentage - 7.82% (March 31, 2024 - 7.82%)),

M/ [CDS Limated , Manipal - 4,49,163 shares (March 31, 2024 - 4,49,163 shares) { Shareholding percentage - 5 36%) ( March 31, 2024 - 5.35%4))

Note 17.04 Details of shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Equity Shares
Name As at 31st March 2025 % change during
(No of Shares Y the year
Kamalaksha Pal K 4,793.00 0.06%
| Vijayalaxmi N Pai 2B1,445.00 3.36%
[Vidya 1,297.00 0.02%
Sunithi P Nayak 6,272.00 0.07%
Chetan B Pai 2,307.00 0.03%
|Sangestha Pail 3,000.00 0.04%
Marayan M Pal T B55.282.00 1.82%
Shankarnarayan Aithal K 200.00 0.00%
|B Manjunath Shenai B68.00 0.01%
Ranga Pai M (HUF} 5,500.00 0.07%
Suman Pai M 3,500.00 0.04%
Ashok Pai T 2,215.00 0.03% =
MNeetha 1,215.00 0.01%
Sunil Pai 284,265.00 3.39%
[Sanjay Pal 5,615.00 0.07%
Manj h Shenai B 4,868.00 0.06%
[Rajesh Pai T 1,800.00 0.02%
Manipal Prakashan Limited 35,589.00 0.42% -
Praman Capital Market Services Limited 28,063.00 0.33%
Sharath Investments Limited 15,183.00 0.18%
Manipal Industries Limited 12 650.00 0.15%
Manipal Sowbhagya Nidhi Limited 224,456.00 2.68%
TVP G | Limited 672,225.00 8.02%
105 Limited 449,163.00 5.36% =
layanthi R Pai 5,494.00 0.07%
Total 2,707,265.00 32.30% -

Note 17.05 There are no shares reserved fon ssue under options and contracts/comanitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment.
Note 17.06 There are no seennfies convertible méo eqmity shares, calls unpaid or forfeited shares

Note 17.07 The Management of the company has put m all the efforts to manage the capital by concentrating on recoveries of duzs, sale of assets and settlement of debts. The same Das to be read with
MNote 14 and Subnotes thereon.

Note 17.08 Discloswe with regard to Preference Shares made vide Note No 13 read with Notz 13.01 to 13.04




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. in thousands)

Sr No. PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
18 OTHER EQUITY
(Refer Note 18.01 1o 18.02)
(a) Capital Reserve 1 1,503 1.503
(b) Capital Reserve 2
Opening 258,616 258,616
Aded: Transferred S =
Closing 258616 258.616
(c) Securities Premium 28,995 28,995
(d) Special Reserve 4,000 4.000
(&) General Reserve 1.906 1.906
() Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (527.970) (526,588)
Add: Profit/(Loss) of the year 72,371 (1.397)
Add: Remeasurement of past emplovee benefit obligation, net of tax (2) 15
Closing (455.601) (527.970)
Total (160,581) (232,950)

Note 18.01 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Particulars

Nature and purpose of Reserves

(a) Capital Reserve 1

(b) Capital Reserve 2

(c) Securities Premium

(d) Special Reserve

(e) General Reserve

(f) Retained Eamings

The Capital Reserve 1 was created in the year ended 30th September. 1998 being the alloiment
money ol unsubscribed portion of equity warranis.

The Company. upto 31st March 2022, with a view towards restructuring its liabilities has settled
deposits/debentures/subordinated debts at discounted rates. The same has been done with due
consent of the parties to deposits, debentures and debts. The interest write back pertaining to
deposits/debentures/subordinated debis 1s treated as Exceptional Ifem in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Principal write back arising out of such settlement is considered as capital receipt and taken
directly to Capital Reserve (viz: Capital Reserve 2) as above. This has been done as per the
accounting policy followed by the Company, as stated in sub note (m) of’ Significant Accounting
Policies, Kev Accounting Estimates and Judgements. The Company had made similar seftlements
during the earlier vears also. by giving the similar accounting treatment.

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium
Reserve. In case of equity-settled share based payment transactions, the difference between fair value
on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted as securities premium reserve. The reserve can
be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Special reserve was created during earlier year's, pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (Amendment)
Act 1997,

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of]
net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to
introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage
of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However. the amount previously transferred
to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies
Act, 2013

Ratained earnings are the profits that the Company has carned till date, less any transfers to special

reserve, general reserve, dividends distributions paid to sharcholders etc.

Note 18.02 Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for defails about other Comprehensive Income.




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs. in thousands)
Sr No. PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
19. INTEREST INCOME
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest income on deposits with banks = =
Total - -
20. DIVIDEND INCOME
Dividend on equity instruments 344 343
Total 344 343
21. RENTAL INCOME
(Refer Note 21.01)
Rent received 1.830 1.743
Total 1,830 1,743
Note 21.01  Rent received represents amount of income accrued on cancellable operating lease.
22. OTHER INCOME
(Refer Note 22.01)
Other Interest 6 5
Rental income (Ind AS adjustment) 35 54
Miscellaneous income 0 -
Total 61 59
Note 22.01  The rental income (Ind AS adjustment) represents amount on account of valuing Rent deposits as disclosed in Note
14 at amortised cost in compliance with requirements of Ind AS 109. "Financial Instruments" .
23, FINANCE COSTS
On Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
(a) Interest on Debt Securities - Matured Debentures o 5
(b) Interest on Matured Subordinated liabilities 209 291
(c) Interest on Fixed Deposits - -
(d) Interest on Borrowings 1.590 1.563
Total 1,799 1,854
24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Refer Note 24.01)
(a) Salaries. wages and bonus 447 721
(b) Contribution to provident and other fund 7 41
(c) Staff welfare expenses 8 10
(d) Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans 3 14
Total 465 786
Note 24.01 Disclosure as required under Ind AS 19 'Emplovee Benefits', given under Note No. 28.07
25, DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT
(a) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment - Own assets 95 95
(b) Depreciation on Investment Property 60 60
Total 155 155




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910K A 1984PLC005988
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Rs. in thousands))
Sr. No. PARTICULARS 2024-25 202324
26 |OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
(Refer Note 26.01 & 26.02)
(a) Rates and taxes & energy costs 23 35
(b} Repairs and maintenance - Building 18 124
- Others 444 49
(¢) Communication costs 63 18
(d) Printing and stationery 35 34
(e} Advertisement and publicity 33 42
() Director’s fees, allowances, and expenses 12 12
() Auditor’s fees and expenses 118 118
(h) Legal and Professional charges 738 498
(1) Brokerage expenses 15 109
(j) Bank charges 9 4
(k) Travelling and conveyance expenses 190 67
(1) Registration and filing fees 390 486
(m) Office maintenance - -
(n) Office Rent . .
(0) Interest expense (Ind AS adjustment) 50 59
(p) Penalty paid - 500
(p) Miscellaneous expenses 82 126
Total 2,220 2,281
Note 26.01  Auditor’s fees and expenses:
PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
Statutory audit B0 80
Certification and tax audit 20 20
Goods and Service Tax 18 18
Total 118 118
Note 26.02 Refer Note 28.06 for disclosure on Office Rent.
27 |EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
(Refer Note 27.01)
Bad dcbts recovered 1,504 1.534
Bad debts written off (71,069)
Bad debts written back 71.069
Profit on sale of unquoted cquity sharcs 73.271
‘Total Income (Net) 74,775 1,534
Note 27.01 The present activity of the Company is restricted to recovery of dues and repayment of debts. Accordingly, the income of the Company depends
upon the recoveries made during the period which vary substantially on year to year basis. Therefore, the Company has disclosed the amount of bad|
debts recovered, reversal of provisions for NPA, settlement credit and bad debts written off under this head.
For details regarding settlement credit, refer Note No. 18.01 to Financial statements.
Note 27.02 The Company has carned Profit on sale of unquoted equity shares as mentioned in Note 5.04
27A |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Refer Note 27A.01)
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(1) Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plans ) 15
(11) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Total (2) 15
(B) Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss;
(1) Fair Valuc Gain on Financial Asscts carricd at FVTOCT z =
(1) Income Tax relating to tems that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Total - -
Note 27A.01  Refer Para IT (i) of Significant Accounting Policies, Key A ti and Jud
PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
27B |EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. in thousands) 72,371 (1.397)
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulating basic EPS (in thousands) 8381 8,381
Basic EPS ity share (in Rs.) (F: lue of Rs. 10 per share fully paid
sic per equity share (in Rs.) (Face value of Rs. 10 per share fully paid) .64 (©.16)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS (in thousands) & 381 §381
Diluted EPS per equity share (in Rs.) (Face value of Rs. 10 per share fully paid)
.64 (0.16)




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988

[ ANNEXURE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2024-25 |
[SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS |
| I. Corporate Information: |

The Registered Office of the Company is at Manipal (State; Karnataka). The Company had commenced its business as a Non-
Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India as 'Hire Purchase and Leasing Company'. However, the
Reserve Bank of India has since cancelled the registration of the Company and the Company has stopped activities of accepting
deposits from public/debentures/subordinated debts. extending loans. hire purchase and leasing activities since July 01, 2002. The
present activity of the Company is mainly restricted to recovery of dues and repayment of the debts. The other necessary details are
being given under Note no. 14.01.

[ 1L Significant Accounting Policies: |

|a. Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements - Statement of Compliance |

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013. The Indian Accounting Standards are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules. 2016.

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. which is also its functional currency. All the values are
rounded off to the nearest thousand.

These financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for (a) certain
Financial Assets and Liabilities and (b) Defined Employee Benefit Plan Assets, which have been measured at their fair values.
Further, the carrying value of all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property as on the date of
transition has been considered at deemed cost as provided under Ind AS 101 First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards'.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 30, 2025 at
Manipal, Karnataka.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and Loss have been prepared and
presented in the format prescribed in Division III of Schedule III to Companies Act., 2013. The Statement of Cash Flows has
been prepared as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. The disclosures as prescribed in Division [II of
Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013 have been presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along
with other disclosures required under Ind AS. Disclosures as per Ind AS and Division I1I of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act,
2013 have been made in this Financial Statement to the extent applicable.



[b. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the resulis of operations during the reporting period end. Although these
estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. actual results could differ from these
estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known /
materialized.

|Critical Accounting Estimates

Depreciation and Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property and Decommissioning Liability

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in
order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values
are based on Company's historical experience with similar assets and after taking into account the anticipated technological
changes. In case of significant changes in the estimates in future, the depreciation shall be revised accordingly. The Company
has not made any policy with regard to decommissioning liability for the reasons specified in clause (d) below.

Allowance for Doubtful Debts on Trade Receivables/Loans

‘When determining the lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis. based on the Company’s historical experience and credit assessment and including forward-looking
information. Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of other advances including other receivables and
determining whether a provision against those Loans/receivables is required. Factors considered include relations with the
counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the
risk of non-payment.

Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds
resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition
and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances and these
judgements are subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take
into account changing facts and circumstances.

Employee Benefit Obligations

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate.
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
employee benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized. based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits. The amount of total deferred tax assets could change if estimates
of projected future taxable income or tax regulations undergo a change.



Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors, An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets. net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use. the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price. recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is
used. After impairment. depreciation is provided on the revised carrving amount of the assct over its remaining useful life.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The
Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Fair Value Measurement |

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participanis at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to
observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

1. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii, Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within level 1
for the asset or liability.

ili. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable related
market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

Property, Plant and Equipment |

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of 'Property. Plant and Equipment' are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items such as purchase price, freight, duties and levies. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts
of the Property. Plant and Equipment' and the borrowing cost if any, till the date of installation of qualifying asset and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Expenses incurred on start-up.
commissioning of the project including expenditure incurred on test runs and experimental production in respect of new unit if
any, are also capitalized.



Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset. as appropriate. only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

An item of Property. Plant and Equipment' and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. Further, when each major inspection is performed. its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item of Property. Plant and Equipment' as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. Machinery spare if any which are specific to a particular item of Property, Plant and Equipment' and whose use
is expected to be irregular are capitalized as 'Property. Plant and Equipment'.

Spare parts if any are capitalized when they meet the definition of Property. Plant and Equipment' i.e. when the Company
intends to use these for more than a period of 12 months. The management is of the opinion that. the Property. Plant and
Equipment held by the Company does not involve decommissioning cost and the cost of removal of such assets is not material
considering the size of the Company. Considering this aspect. the Company has not made any policies for capitalizing the
decommissioning cost.

Depreciation on 'Property, Plant and Equipment' generally is provided on the Straight Line Method over the useful lives of the
assets and residual value in terms of Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013. Depreciation for the assets purchased/sold
during the period is proportionately charged. Building constructed on the lease hold land is depreciated over the period of
lease or the useful life in terms of Schedule IT of the Companies Act 2013, whichever expires earlier. Leasehold land if any. is
amortized over the period of the lease. Improvements to buildings are amortized over the period of remaining useful life of the
building. No further depreciation is charged on assets, where the assets have completed their useful life. The residual values,
useful lives and methods of depreciation of 'Property. Plant and Equipment' are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate and under such circumstances the appropriate disclosure is being made in the notes to
accounts.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of its Property, Plant and Equipment
recognized as on April 01, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP as the deemed cost of the Property,
Plant and Equipment on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Investment Property |

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and measured and reported at
cost, including transaction costs. It consists of Freehold Buildings that are not intended to be occupied substantially for use by,
or in the operations of, the Company. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period. Investment Properties are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided in the manner as stated in clause (d) above.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrving value of its Investment Property recognized as on
April 01, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP as the deemed cost of the Investment Property on the date
of transition to Ind AS.

Financial Instruments |

[ 1. Initial Recognition and Measurement |

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at Fair Valuc on initial recognition, except for trade receivable
which is initially measured at transaction price. Transaction cosis that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial
recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e. the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.



[ 2. Subsequent Measurement - Non Derivative Financial Instruments |

Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset other than equity investment is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on principal amount outstanding. Where the Company makes an irrevocable election based on its
business model. for its investments which are classified as equity investments, the subsequent changes in the fair value will be
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.
Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss arc initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently. they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date. the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity
of these instruments.

[ 3. Derecognition of Financial Instruments |

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability is derecognized
from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

4. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include
discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in
general approximation of value and such value may never be actually realized.

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the reporting date and which are not carried at fair value, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.



|£. Taxes on Income |

Income tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred income tax if any. Income tax expense if any. is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. in which case tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or in equity. as appropriate.
Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss at the amount expected fo be
paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Shect date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. The
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset arising from unused tax losses or tax credit only io the extent that it is probable that
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which unused tax losses or tax credits can be utilised by the entity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realized. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented in the Balance Sheet after setting off the same against each other.

Deferred tax assets are assessed in accordance with the tax laws in India. which is likely to give future economic benefits in
the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.

Income tax paid (including tax deducted at source. tax paid on self-assessment or otherwise) and provision for current income
tax if any is presented in the Balance Sheet after setting off the same against cach other.

|h. Revenue Recognition |

[Revenue from Operations |

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect nltimate collection in accordance
with the provisions of Ind AS 115.

The Company has followed the Prudential Norms for Income Recognition as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India for Non-
Banking Financial Companies. The principal write back pertaining to deposits & debentures (as stated in note 18) has been
directly taken to the credit of Capital Reserve in the Balance Sheet. since the same is in the nature of capital receipt for the
reasons as stated in sub-clause (m) below.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets
other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL. Interest income on credit impaired
assets if any, is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial
asset,

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Rental Income

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the lease term
unless there is another systematic basis which is more representative of the time pattern of the lease. Revenue from lease rental
is disclosed net of indirect taxes, if any.



Rendering of Services

Revenue from rendering services if any is disclosed net of GST and recognized when the outcome of a transaction can be
estimated reliably by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. The outcome of the transaction can be estimated
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

i) The amount of revenue can be reliably measured,

ii) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company,

iii) The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be reliably measured, and

iv) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

[Other Income:

Interest on refund of Income Tax is accounted in the year of receipt and Miscellaneous income is accounted as and when
received.

Employee Benefits

[Short-term Employee Benefits

Emplovee benefits such as salaries, wages, shori-term compensated absences, expected cost of bonus. ex-gratia and
performance linked rewards such as annual variable pay falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

[Post Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

Provident fund scheme and employee state insurance scheme are the Company's defined contribution plans in which both the
employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The contribution paid or payable under the scheme is
recognized during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company has no liability for future
benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee
renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan provides a lump-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective employee's salary and tenure of employment with the Company.

The Company's contribution towards gratuity is invested in a Group Gratuity Policy with the Life Insurance Corporation of
India. Deficit/surplus of present value of obligations (under gratuity policy) over the fair value of gratuity plan assets is
recognized in the Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. The same is determined based on an independent actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Gains and losses through remeasurement of the net gratuity liability/asset are
recognized in other comprehensive income and is reflected in other equity and the same is not eligible to be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss. Premium expense incurred to keep in effect such a group gratuity policy is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expense in the year such premium falls due.

[Other Long Term Employment Benefits

The company has recognised liability in respect of leave encashment i.¢. the provision for compensated absences as a long
term employee benefit. The same has been made on an estimated basis, considering the fact that the amount involved therein is
not material.



li. Share Capital, Share Premium and Dividend Distribution |
Ordinary shares are classified as equity, incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares if any. are shown in
equity as a deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds. Par value of the equity share is recorded as share capital and the amount
received in excess of the par value is classified as share premium.

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorized and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders.
A corresponding amount is recognized directly in other equity along with any tax thereon.

Preference shares are classified as shares entitled for preferential right over dividend (before the equity sharcholders). A
preference share that provides for redemption a specific date or at the option of holder contains a financial liability.
Accordingly the same will be recognised as financial liabilities and any payment of dividend in relation to these shares shall be
considered as Finance cost in accordance with provisions of Ind AS 109,

[k. Exceptional Items |
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size. nature or incidence that their
disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items
are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

[l. Lease Transactions |
As a Lessee:
Leases are classified as finance lecase whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. without giving
effect to opening balance of retained earnings.

The Company’s lease asset (taken on short term) classes wholly consist of operating leases for Buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves
the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU™) and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and leases of low value assets if any. For these short-term and leases of low value assets if any, the Company
recogniscs the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. if any. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability. reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index
or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets



Right of Usec asset (ROU Asset) have becn scparately presented in the Balance Sheet as a part of Property, Plant and
Equipment. Corresponding lease liabilities are being disclosed as other financial liabilities either as current or non current
depending on the period of reversal. and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows,

As Lessor:
Leases are classified as Finance Lease or Operating Lease, in the manner stated above.

Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight-line basis over the lease term unless there is another
systematic basis which is more representative of the time pattern of the lease. Revenue from lease rental is disclosed net of
indirect taxes. if any.

Capital Reserve |

The principal write back pertaining to deposits, debentures and Subordinated debts as stated in Note no. 18.01, is in the nature
of capital receipt. The stand taken by the Company is also duly supported by the decision of Jurisdictional High Court
i.e.Honorable High Court of Karnataka, as reported in 285 ITR 310 (2006) (CIT Vs ICDS Limited) wherein it is held that
surplus on purchase of own debentures is a Capital Receipt, not subject to tax and 249 CTR 214 (2011) (CIT Vs Compaq
Electric Limited) wherein it was held that the waiver of the loan is a Capital receipt. In the case of the Company viz. CIT Vs
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited (ITA No. 795 & 794/2008) the Hon. High Court of Karnataka has dismissed the appeal
filed by the department on the similar grounds.Considering the above, the same has been directly taken to the credit of Capital
Reserve in the Balance Sheet

Borrowing Cost |

Borrowing cost if any, includes interest expense calculated using the effective interest method and finance expenses in respect
of assets acquired on finance lease if any.

Borrowing costs that are atiributable to the acquisition. construction or production of a qualifying assel, are capitalized/
inventoried as a part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets |

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects. when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. When the unavoidable costs of
meeting obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under such contract (onerous
contract), the present obligation under the contract is recognized and measured as a provision,

Contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to accounts when in case of a present obligation arising from past events, it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the same is not possible.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.



|p. Impairment of Assets |

[Financial Assets |

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures. The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. right from its initial
recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts fo recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the period if any. is recognized as expense/income in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

|N on-Financial Assets Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property |

As at each Balance Sheet date. the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired
based on external and internal factors and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognized in the
previous periods. If any indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company determines
the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount,

Recoverable amount is determined. at the higher of the assets’ fair value less cost to sell and value in use: and

- In case of cash generating unit if any, (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of
cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset. In determining fair value less
cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI if any. For such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation.

‘When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off,
If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

|g. _Earnings per Share |
Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax (before considering other
comprehensive income) for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share. if any, is computed by dividing the net profit or
loss for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares. by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity share outstanding during the
period except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

|r. Statement of Cash Flows |
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method in accordance with Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. whereby profit after
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows are
segregated into operating, investing and financing activities.




[s. Cash and Cash Equivalents |
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank and term deposits maturing within 3 months from the date of
deposit. Term deposits maturing beyond 3 months, carmarked balances with banks and deposits held as margin money or
securily against borrowings etc. have not been considered as Cash and cash equivalents.

[t. Other Matters |

|Rccenl Accounting Pronouncements - Application of new and revised Ind ASs |

All the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs are effective and
considered for the significant accounting policies to the extent relevant and applicable for the Company.Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA"™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. No such notifications issued during the year.

|ReclassificationfRegmuping;‘Reworking of Previous Year's Figures |
Under Ind AS the Company is required to prepare the financial statements as per Division III of Schedule Il to Companies
Act 2013. Previous year's figures have been reworked. regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988

28.01 The Company has been incurring substantial losses over the last few vears and major portion of its funds are blocked in non-perfonming assets. In view of the same there is
considerable uncertainty that the Company will continue as a going concem and meet its commitments to its creditors. The accounts however have been prepared on the going
concern basis in view of management has settled all its dues held by way of deposits, secured debenutres and subordinated debts, either by repayment or by transfer to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (except for the disputed dues, the amount involved wherein is not material) as detailed in Note No. 14 and the management is being hopeful of
recovery of dues from its borrowers.. Accordingly the management is of the opinion that the losses as aforesaid and also the circumstances as stated in Note No. 14 of the

financials statement will not have adverse effect on the functioning of the Company

28.02 The Company has not recognised the net deferred tax asset which constitutes mainly of carry forward losses, excess depreciation claimed in Income Tax and Provisions for

doubtful debts, as a matter of prudence. Details of which are given below:

IDiscIusures pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" ( Rs. In Thousands)

| A) Major components of tax expense/(income):

Company does not have any current tax hability and company has not recognised deferred tax asset (net) as a matter of prudence. Accordingly the question of disclosure of
components of tax expense/(income) does not arise.

Sr no.

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

(a) Profit hefore Tax 72,375 (1,397

(b) Corporate tax rate as per Income Tax Act 1961 25.168% 25.168%

(c) Tax on Accounting Profit (a*b) 18,215 (352)

(d) {1) Tax on items not tax deductible: 151 223
(ii) Tax on items which are tax deductible and allowances (452) (463)
(iii) Difference on account of Tnd AS Adjustments 1.3 12
(1v) Tax on income Exempt from tax - -
{v) Tax difference on income taxed at specialised tax rates - -
(vi) Tax on other heads of income 269 299
{vi1) Tax savings on set off of Current year/Bought Forward losses (269) (299)
{viil) Tax difference on account of Losses for the year 488 593
Total effect of tax adjustments [(i) to (viii)] 189 353

(e) Current Tax expense recognised during the yvear (¢ as adjusted by d) - -
Prior Period Adjustments - -
Deferred Tax expense Charged (recognised) during the vear - -
Total tax expense recognised during the year - -

(53] Effective tax rate (e/a) NA NA

Note : Company has no tax payable during the vear as well as previous year. Hence effective tax rate is nil.

51 no. Particulars Deferred Tax as at Adjustment for the year
31-03-2025 31-03-2024 2024-25 2023-24
(a) Brought forward Business Losses 17,552 17,279 273 479
(b) Unabsorbed depreciation 13,623 13,604 19 21
{c) Finaneial assets 53,256 53,256 - (33)
(d) Emplovees' Defined Benefit Plan 15 16 (1) 1
(e) Depreciation on Investment Property 487 472 15 15
Deferred tax (expenses)/income (not recognised)
Net deferred tax assets (not recognised) 84&‘ 8-—!.6_2'.-"

The Deferred Tax asset as disclosed above, not recognised in the Financial Statement. as a matter of prudence. Accordingly no amounts charged or recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. There are no deferred tax Liabilities. Also the deferved tax asset computation as above for the comparative penod has been made arrived at considering the tax rate

as 25.168%.

|§ D) Reconciliation of deferrved tax (assets)liabilities:

The question of reconciliation of defered tax assets & liabiliity does not arise, since the same are not recognised in the financial statement.

‘There are no adjustments pertaining to current and deferred tax adjustment directly charged or credited directly to Equity for the year and also for the comparative periods.




(F) Reconciliation of Income Tax Paid

As at 31st As at 31st
Sr. Particul
e e — March2025 | March 2024
(a) At the beginning of the year (Paid - Advance IT/TDS) 191 176
(b} Charge for the year - -
(©) Charge for the previous year adjusted S
(d) Tax Paid (net of refund received Adjustment) during the vear 16 15
(e) At the end of the year (Paid or provision) 207 191
As at 31st Asat 31st
Sr.
e Particulars March2025 | March 2024
: e ¢ Differe Ina jati
(a) Ti mporary Difference on account of Unabsorbed Depreciation (No 54,129 54055
expiry dates)
(b) Temporary Difference on account of Unused Tax Lossess . 69,737 68,653
(Refer table below for expiry dates of unused tax losses)
3 93 ;
(c) Temporary Difference on account of Depreciation on Investment Property e 1,876
@ Temporary Difference on account of Provisions on Financial Assets 211,603 211.603
Temporary Difference on account of Provisions on Employees Defined 5
: 58 63
(e) Benefit Plan
Loss
relating to Expiry years At 380 Ak 3lab
J“_,g A March 2025 | March 2024
2016-17 AY 24-25 7.064 7.064
2017-18 AY 25-26 8.054 8,054
2018-19 AY 26-27 12,340 12,340
2019-20 AY 27-28 5.070 5,070
2020-21 AY 28-29 25,040 25.040
2021-22 AY 29-30 - -
2022-23 AY 30-31 9.185 9,185
2023-24 AY 31-32 1.900 1,900
2024-25 AY 32-33 1.085 -
Total 69,737 68,653

Applying the tax rate to arrive at the Tax Liability:

The Company is Computing the Tax ws 115BAA of Income Tax Act 1961, Accordingly. the tax expenses are arrived at 25.168% ( Tax at 22%, surcharge -10% and Cess - 4%)

Financial Risk Management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to liquidity risk and credit risk which may impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The company adheres

to a robust Financial management framework to address these risks.

I(“redit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not be able to meet 1ts obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial loss. As detailed in Note 14.01 the Company has
not been performing operations since 2001 and the recovery of dues is under process. Management of the company has duly provided for impairment losses where it is of the
opinion of that the parties will not be able to discharge their liabilities. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the financial assets at the reporting date 1s the carrying

value of such assets recorded in the financial statements net of any allowance for losses.

Financial Assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month Expected Credit loss

(Rs. in thousands)
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents 110 278
Other Balances with Banks 76 76
Investments 107 6.869
Other Financial Assets B47 896
TOTAL 1.140 8.119
Financial Assets for which loss allowance is measured using Lifetime Expected Credit loss
(a) Trade Receivables
The Company’s trade receivables include the due portion of lease and hire purchase along with interest accrued thereon.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (before impairment) as of the reporting date (considered from the date they are due for payment) is as follows:
(Rs. in thousands)
Due for As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024
0-5 past due date - %
More than 5 Years past due date 6,115 6.115
Total Trade Receivable 6.115 6,115

The company has already provided for impairment in full towards these financial assets after assessing the extent of recoveries.



The following table sinumarizes the mpairment loss model
(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars 315t March 2025 | 31st March 2024

(i} Balance as at beginming of the year a.l1l5 6,115
(1) Impamwment Allowance - -

(1) Provisions Wiitten back = -
(1v) Balance at end of the vear 6,115 6113

Inaddition to above a sum of Rs. NIL (P Y Rs Nil) written off a3 Bad Debt

(b) Loans
As detmled m Note 4.01 of Fomnenl statements, the Compary bad assigned wider an ‘assigmment deed certam debts and recoverables consistmg miter alia stock on hure along with equal

liabilties of the Company 1o Vedachala Electromes & Financial Services Private Lumited. The Company had discharged the assigned habilities of VEFSPL on ils failure o service e same.

The Company based on the estimated recovery bas made full imparment provision agamst the recervables of VEFSPL and from other parties

(Bs. in thousands)
Due for As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024
(-5 past due date - -
More than 5 Years past due date 205,488 05 488
Total Loans 205488 205,488

The company has already provided for mnparment m fitll towards these fmancial assets after assessmg the extent of receoveries.

The following table smumarizes the mparment loss model
(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars 315t March 2025 | 31st March 2024
(i) Balance as at begiiming of the year 205 488 205,488
(i) Imparment Allowance - -
(1) Provisons Written back & =
(1) Balance at end of the vear 205,488 205,488

Inaddition to above a sum of Rs. NIL thousands (F Y Rs. Nil ) written off as Bad Delt.

Il.ignidﬁ Risk

Liquidity Risk refers to the risk that the Company cammot meet its financal obligations on time. The ofjective of the liquidity risk management is to mamtam sufficient quidity and ensure that
finds are available for tmely settlement of the obligations

The Compary’s treasury department monitors the honidity, fundmg as well as settlements of these oblizations, in addition to settlement of all other external labilties. The treaswy department
montors its risk of shortage of funds on a regular basis to ensure contimuty of finding,  In addition, the management monitors the Comparry's net hiquidity position through rollmg forecasts
o the basis of expected cash flows.

The Company stopped acceptmg/renewing deposits, debertures and subordmated debta with effect from July 01, 2002, Puble deposits accepted by the Company are fully mated As detailed
m Note 14.01, the Compary has fully settled unelaimed debentures, unel | suberdinated debts and deposits except for disputed at appropriate legal formns. The unelamed ameunts

pertaiming to debentires and subordmated debts with iferest upto matirity have been tramsferred to Investor Education & Protection Fund on 29th March 2022 Accordmgly, there 1s mo
liability outstandmg m the books of the Company as on 31st March 2025 except the disputed amounts at legal forums amounting to INR 2.06 lakhs. For further information on Trade
Recevables, Loans, Borrowings and Subordmated liabalities refer Note 3, Note 4, Note 12, Note 13 and Mote 14 read with submotes thereon

As ai 31st March 2028
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1to5 Years | More than 5 Years Total
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 110 - - 110
Other Balances with Banks - 76 - 76
Trade Receivables - - - -
Loans - N = =
Investments 1 = 106 107
Other Fmancial Assets o47 200 - 847
TOTAL 758 276 106 1,140
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 142 218 360
Subordivated Liabiditses = - 29,500 29,500
Borrowings 7 1,311 8156 2474
Other Fuiancml Liabilties 6,142 363 - 6,505
TOTAL 6,291 1.674 37874 45,839
As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1to5 Years | More than 5 Years Total
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents g - - 278
Other Balances with Banks - 76 - 76
Trade Receivables = = 5 2
Loans - - - -
Tnvestinents 1 - 6,868 6,869
Other Fiancial Assets o6 250 - 8§26
TOTAL 925 326 6,808 8,119
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 142 128 198 468
Subordinated Liabulities = - 29500 29,500
Bomowmngs 139 1.819 13,585 15,643
Other Fiancal Liabilties 79,186 457 - 79,643
Ti 79,467 2,504 = 43,283 125254




IFﬂir yalue measurement hierarchy |
Fair value 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or pasd to wansfer a liabdity i an orderly transaction in the prnespal (or most advantageonis) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (Le . an exit price), regardless of whether that price is dectly observable or estinated vusing a valuation teclnugue.

(Rs. In thousands)

As at 31st March 20258 As at 31st March 2024
el Level 1 Level 2 Carying |y ovel 1| Level2
Carrying Amount Amount

Financial Assets

At Amortised Cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents 110 - - a78 - -
Other Balances with banks 76 - - 76 - -
Trade recervables - - - - - -
Loars - - - - - -
Other Fmancial assets. 847 - - R96 - -
At FVTPL

Irvestments 107 1 106 6,869 1 6,868
Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Trade Fayables 360 - - 468 - -
Bomowings 0,474 = - 15.643 - -
Subordumted labihities 29,500 - - 20,500 - -
Other Fmancial Liabilities 6,505 - - 79,643 - -

28.04 | Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Segment reporting” |

The compary = prananly ergaged m the business of fimaneng and there are no separate reportable segments wdentified as per the Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting. Therefore the question of
making diselosures as requured under Ind AS 108 does not arise.
Company does not have any major customer contributag more than 10% of Revenue (mcludng ncome considered as exceptional items).

18.05 | Discly epard to Corpurate Socia

sure with res ] Act, 2] I
Frowvisions of CSK is not appheable

Ba. 50,000 thovsands

not exceed

to the Company considermg the fact that the net profit does

28,06 [Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases" |

Depreciation charge for right of use assets by class of inderlyving asset: Wil smee there are no Right to Use Assets However deprecmtion m respect of Bulding Lease hold, duclosed vide
Note 9 read with note 25,

Interest expense on lease liabilities : Nil smce there are no such liabilities.

Expense relatmg to short tenn leases accounted for applying recognition exemptions: Refer Note 26 under the head "Office Rent"
Expenses relating to leases of low vale assets accointmg for apphymg recognition exemptions: There are 1o sich leases.
Expenses relating variable lease payments not nehided m the measurement of lease habilities: There are no such cases,

Ineome from subleasing of right to use assets: There are no such cases

Tatal cash outlow for leases: Not applicable, smee there are no Right (o Use Assets.

Cash outflows m respect of short term leases, if any covered under Note 26 of financial statement, as stated above. Cash outflow m respect of such leases within next 12 months Rs. NIL (PY
Rs Nil)

Addition to Right ta use assets and Camying amourd night of use assets at the end of the reportmg period by class of inderlying asset - There are no such additions
Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabalites applymg Ind AS 107 Not appleable, smee there are no lease habilites

Year wise break up of Lease Rent Payablas (covered under Ind A 116) - Not Applieable, smee there are no such leases.

Matre of leasmg activities: The Company has taken the Buldmg on lease on a short term bass, which bas been used m the crdinary course of business

Cither disclommres are required under Ind AS 116 ot appheable to the Company

e C a8 3 I
The Company has given the commercial premises under operatmg leases. The lease rent ble there on credited to 1t of profit and loss account vide Note 21,

The nature of kasing activity carried on by the Company 5 the giving of commercial premizes on operating lease. The management does not foresee any risk associated with any rights mn
reatamirg the wderlying asset, The kease s supported by lease agreement/MOTT and lessee 1s required Lo hand over the possession of the property back to the Company on expiry of the kase
term. There are no other risk management strategy withregard to the lease.

Year wise breakup of Future Lease Rental Receipts:
Rs . In thousands

Amount reccivable during next As at 31st March 2025
1 Year 1,830
2 Year 1,542
3 Year 1,437
4 Year 1,182
5 Year 1,256
Total 7,257




I-‘"! Brief description of the plans:

The Company has two schemes for Long-Term Benefits: Provident Fund and Gratuity. In case of Funded Schemes, the funds are
administered through Appropriate Authorities. The Company's Defined Contribution Plan is Employees' Provident Fund (under the
provisions of Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 1952). The Company has no further obligation beyond making
the contributions to the said fund. The Company is also contributing towards Employee State Insurance Plan as per statutory requirements,
wherein the Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company’s Defined Benefit Plan is Gratuity.

The Company is also providing employee benefit by way of encashment of earned leave. The provision for the same has been made on
estimated basis. The amount involved therein is not material, considering the size of the Company. The Company has not opted for

actuarial valuation, considering the cost involved and also the concept of materiality.

The Company’s defined benefit plan is gratuity.

|B] Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of contributions:

I

(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars

2024-25

2023-24

Company's contribution to

i. Provident Fund

i1. Employee State Insurance Plan
iii. Leave encashment provision

41

|C) Disclosures pertaining to Gratuity

The gratuity plan is govermned by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972 under which an employee who has completed five vears of service is
entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. This
fund is being maintained by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The disclosures as required under Ind AS 19 is made below. on the

basis of report obtained from LIC.

{Rs. In Thousands)

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

Mortality rate

Partieutars March 2025 March 2024
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 518 479
Interest Cost 25 34
Current service cost 17
Past service cost - -
Remeasurements - Net actuarial (gains)’ losses (4) (12)
Benefits paid (280) =
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 266 518
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 581 539
[nterest income 29 39
Contribution by employer 1 -
Benefit paid (280) -
Return on plan assets (Excl. interest income) (6) 3
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year 325 581
|cLExpenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Interest cost 25 34
Current service cost 7 17
Past service cost - -
Total 32 51
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 35 22
Retumn on plan assets (ncluding interest income) 23 H
Total 58 63
|eLAmount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present Value of Funded Defined Benefit obligation 266 518
Fair value of plan assets 325 581
Net funded Asset/(Liability) 58 63
D Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 6.53% 7.17%
Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 7.00% 7.00%

Indian assured lives
mortality (2012-14)
(Ultimate)

Indian assured lives
mortality (2012-14)
(Ultimate)




The attrition rate is 3% for the vear ended 31st March, 2025 ( 3% for the vear ended 31st March. 2024)
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 58 years,
The expected contribution pavable to the plan next year is Rs. 7 thousand (Rs.7 thousand).

i analysis for significant assumption is as below:
Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined

benefit obligation, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. The significant actuarial assumptions are discount rate and salary
escalation rate,

Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
Particulars March, 2025 (Rs. In| March, 2024 (Rs. In
th ds) thousands)
1% increase
1. Discount rate 262.04 496.91
ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long term 271.00 540.55
1. Attrition rate 265.92 516.61
1% decrease
i. Discount rate 270.61 540.28
ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long term 261.57 496.30
1. Attrition rate 266.61 519.35

The sensitivity analvsis presented above mayv not be representative of the actual charge in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumption would oceur in isolation of one another as the assumptions may be correlated.

bLMaturity analvsis of defined benefit obligation (Pavout

The defined benefit obligation shall mature after 31st March, 2025 as follows

Particulars Rs. In thousands
Year 1 991
Year 2 286.87
Year 3 -
Year 4 -
Year 5 -
Next 5 Years ( 6-10 Years) -
Pavouts above 10 vears -
Total Expected Payments 296.80

28.08|Financial and Non-Financial Assets

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the assets listed under the heads Financial Assets & Non-Financial Assets (other than Property
Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Investments) as stated in Note 1 to 10 the Balance Sheet, have a value on realisation in the
ordinary course of busmess atleast equal to the amount at which they are stated.



28.09 | Disclosure of Related Parties/Related Party Transactions

ursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures’

hal List of Related Parties and its Status of T'ransactions

Whether Related party
Sr. No. Name of the Related Party Nature of relationship transactions entered during
the year (Yes/No)
1 T Narayana M Pai, Managmg Director Key Managerial Personnel No
, :UBSJ; J;(\le-“;-u Chief Finance Officer till ey Mamtial Peisonnil Ves
3 gg .;Zr_._;(r;gjnya. ChuelFinaes Dificertion Key Managerial Personnel No
4 Hari Shankar Shukla. Company Secretary Key Managerial Personnel Yes
s Key Managerial Personnel as
shok Pai, Director 5 N
5 B Ashok Pai, Director per nd Ay o
: . : Key Managerial Personnel as
6 Vinoda Sherigar, Woman Director ; = S No
per Ind As
Key M. ial Pers |
Hiriadka Mohandas, Director S e SRR No
7 per Ind As

hbl Summary of Related party Transactions

Sl No. Particulars KMP and their Relatives Other Related Parties Total
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
A. Volume of Transactions:
Al Advances received - - - - - -
A2 Salary and Other Allowances 420 673 - - 420 673
B. Balances at the end of the year:
Bl Balance in advances received - 73.007 - - - 73,007
C. Other disclosures:
Cl Other Payments to Directors - - 12 12 12 12
hcl Disclosure of Related Party Transactions
Rs. in thousands)
Sr. No. Nature of Transactions/Parties 2024-25 2023-24
Al Advances received during the year
T Narayana M Pai, Managing Director - -
A2 Key Management personnel Compensation:
T Sanjay Pai, Chief Finance Officer
Short term Employee benefits = 223
Post Employment benefits = 30
Total - 253
Hari Shankar Shukla, Company Secretary -
Short term Employee benefits 420 420
Total 420 420
Grand Total 420 673
B1 Balance in advances received
T Naravana M Pai, Managing Director - 73,007
- 73,007
1 Other Payments to Directors
Sitting Fees to Independent non executive
directors 12 12
12 12
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Auswts”

A, Liahility in respest of dumages sl others in respect of suits agaisst the Company befere varioss Cowts, Consuaner Courts et fin respect of reprymant of deposits debanuresdebts with interest & offies

coss) amnous t2 INE. 200 thowsands (FY INE B2 theuianids) s staied m Nete 1

Thiere are po further oo payalds by the compiary, Merefore the guesion of et previsson dies nof axce

B, No provisien made for dspuisd income bax liabidsty for vanows years wherever deprrtovent has prefered an nppeal before the Homorslile Tribual, Homorable High Court and Homorabls Supreme Court.
The auestion of quantification of listality therean, does vot ssise, for the tesson dat fie cases were llowsd m faver of the Conpany, by the lawer sppeBate authoritics

€. The Company, dusing the FY 201928 hai recerved show-cause notice fiom Registrar of Companies, K amainkn (BOC) with regard tn non complinnee of appinting Compny Secretary e vicltion of

sechon 3RIA ofthe Comganes Act, 195 and cecion 203 of he Comgamies Act 2005 The namsgement of tse Compary haz Bled an applicatien for seeking conposstion of offence and office of Regional

Dirsctor bas compossded e sffeues mul ordered fi company bo pay Pemlty aud nccordngly the compn: s dischged the listlity of pesliics wnder Comnpanses Act, 2113, The show casse olice s

nioresaid abso refers to costnin oher iagers, nclnding proposal of ackan for mpaid mutred deposits wath méerest thereon. The Cemparsy hns mude fhe representition before e Registrar of Couspasies

sk to detp the peogosals sisce is the opisscst of the Comprury, eiflier fhere se o nest comglisice or fhe Comgusy has takien sufcet iteps o conply witls e obsorvsfions

2811 The Mamgement of the Company is of the opinson that Hee directors of the Compasy are not disqualified w's 164(2) of Congames Act 2013, |im spite of the Fact tnt the Company has stapped repaying
mmared deberuresidebits/deposits mud imterest Hhereon as detaled in Note no. 14.01), for e reason that the Commpany bas fily setfied mdispated sl anclaimed debentures and undispeted asd umclnimed

112

13

subsedmated debts along with mierest upto mahsity by transfering it the hevestsr Educafins and Protection Fund cn 288 March 2021, Accardingty, there are no new filires to repay
commmencemest of Comgaries Act 2003 25 corfempiated inder Section 154(2)(b) of the Compasies Act 2013 snd therefare fl directors of e Compary are sot disguakfied ns on 315t March 21

lelitzes ater the

af Astets

The managenmie of fhe company i of e spinin that csryiing vtie of sssets docs it excesd ite recovershle vahse, Frsther the Conmssry does it Tarve any infosration whether iernal or externad, that
inficate st fmpaimnent bes may bave ovonred. Considering ol dhese aspects, the compary has uot impsired ay of the oo Fnancal assets. This sote is to be sead along with Note 807 to Fisanuial

Sinfements.

The managemans of the sompamy is of

Trade Receivables:

pinion that Fimsnein] Avsets held s Eqity Tt and Prefareiice Shrvs liave ot be imprived. The deteils of amoost imvested i aquify instrens aod
e ferenes dloces wre disclosed vide Wote no. § 1o Faseial statensenls.

Thie conmpaary s abresaly provided For nnpsiment loss i fill sowards these Fuimmcial aseste 26 per the RBI Prodestial somic. The Company is of he opsuion Uit dhe ssoovt 0 nugosred is sppropriats a¢ on
the date of the Balanee Sheet and socordisgly these & e requiteasen to somsider sy furtier impoinent towasds ese fsancial assets. Trade seceivables are inpaired wder Life Tie Expected Credit Loss
Bedsed aud the detais are given vide note. Note 3 and 2403 to the Financial statements

Loams:.

As per RET pandential norms company has alresdy provided m frdl towards lnsss Thevefore the aquestion of framang further policy m fhis comection does not arise. Lowns are impared nnder Life Tane
Eupested Credit Loss Medod ad e detsals sre given vids nose. Mote 4 al 28 03 o the Frnancial stalenseis.

Oithver Fimumcial Ascetst

Chtbwer fimaneinl assets {other than aovered nhove) sonsists mainty of mmd Corh & Bank balances and deposite with consmmer sowts. The Conspamy does mot berve any informatian whesher inferml or external,
fhatindizate that impaitment loss sy v scommed. Avesrdngly the company las w0t ngaired sy of these fuanesd assete

[Earther Dicclosure a1 reouired wder Ind A5 T of Cach Flows) with regard ta By 5 ]
Current Year:
Opandiig balanies g6 R M LT U | kg R T wk o A
Takvn ot e, iy | ooy |, 8 2 March, 2024
detalled in Note 1781
Tapaid ssatsaed ey st F F . =
npaid ssatused delentuses 2 E 5 =
Uknpaid suddinissz o Halliiee - - . ”
Proceads from bamowings 15,643 - 2474
Tatal Cash sutflew ccount af fin activitier [ = 3474
Previous ¥ears
Nom cash Transaction
Pardeulars "::'l:"‘-"";:' Ciiim | (race | U ke s o S0
Apeil, detailed in Kote 17.01) 4
[Tinpmid mateed depasts ; . i =
Uinpaid matwed debenne: P . 3 ;
Unpaid awbordinsde d labilities p E E =
Frocesds Ao bonowmes 128 LEW - 15,043
Tatal Cash sutflow (sel) wi account of fnancig acthvitie: 11484 1599 ) 1855

D804 The Comgenny lse met venfied e Froperty, Plast sl Eguipment msdes Tewse fallig tndes the head “Leased Machanerics sl Equipsment” & “Leased Vebicles and Famine”, comddering s lact it the
poesent valise of much aciets swe notmeatenial sad alus considering the coot ivolved in the sforesmd verification

2815 The Company has. in ol matersal respects, an adeguate mbernad finmmesal controls system aver fmneial reparting md sich imtemsl fnancead controls over nancial reperting were operating effectively as o

18,16

3Lat Marsh 2025, sbgsct b He Mots 1614 of fmancial swisment

The Comprury dees unt poceess mny imnevobe

Dl it ssusse: of the Conpassy duiiive the financeal yess ended March 31, 2027 qunl Maweh 31, 2029 sxcept the followine.

Bein i e Balwmce Shicet Dreseiptivn of | Frows Caryd Whether Gile deed | Fropeny beld | Beason for st being
the punperty | Value (Grose | Balder ic preenoter, | vince which date | helidin the nssue of the
Block} director or relasve of | campany
e et e tme e
ctoployes ol
provaterdhrecnr
Property, Mlaut sl Equspuacat Land & Duilkug [TV 2 06000 |Na 20eh September, | Pending for registaation
theusands: 1995 e to ghe denth of de

avemer f the property
Hesescary fomulitics are
peading witls the beiss:

2817 The Company s it granted loms ar advaces in the nsture of loans are granted to promoters, directors, EMPs and the related prtics.

808 The Compainy daes not have any Hensu grepeity, whese any preceeiding lss been inated or pending againet e Company for lrolding sy B property.

2819 The Compamy has et raded or imvested m Crypéo sumeney or Virtsal comeney dunng the fimancial years snded March 71, 2025 and March 31, 2024

property {odher @ propartios whers the Compamy is toe lesses and the laam sgresments are duly execsted in fronnr of the lassea) swhose bitle deads sra not
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Undiselused Tcoiwe
Thiers ase i iraesacdons nad reconded i fhe bouks of serouts.

The Company bas et been dechueed as 5 wil il defadier by ay baok or fnaneisd iostinmion or other lender i the finzmeisl yeses eoded Mareh 51, 2022 and Mareh 41, 2014
The Compruny dees not have ot have sy tnosactions with the companes strck off nnder seckon 248 of Compasies Act, 2013 or secion 560 of Congianies Act, 1955

Anshytical Ratia

W dew attesitin to Note 28,01 and Mate 14,01, The Couspsary haa been incussing aubstutial losses over the bist Few yeors ani tnajor povtion oFits fsds ave Bosked i uoii-perFeevaing sssets. The preseat
nckvity of the Campauny i resticted o recovery of dues and setting iss liskilises. Accordingly,

i, Capitad to sk weaghted arcets mitin {CRAR)

il Tier I CRAR

iii Tier [l CRAR are uegative sinl thevefore restricted to 2eru.

Furder, the Cormpary s fully repaid public deposits during the year and therefore compaging the Liguidity Coverage Rado is not applicalie te the Company,

All charges or satisfaction are regstered wth RO within the ctafory penad for the financad years ened Maseh 31, 2025 s Mareh 31, 2024, No charzes ar satisbachons are vet bo be remstered with ROC
beyuud fie statuony perisd

A Thee sz sinent hereby state fisl, o the best of s kowledge anl bele oo fonds ave been advimced or Iwmdu hn-miemm [mmbolm:d Duemake i1 huare prenii e sy other seirees o kud of
ids) by e Corvginy ta or it say oflser peisone or entities, inchadinng Fareign extities {1 Fariec”), with whether tiing ov oflserwize, hat e Tatersedisey diall:
« directly orindirectly lend or imvest s other persons or ereities idestified in nmy munmer whatso ever [*Ubimate Beneficiaries”) by or on belnlf of the Compay o

« provide sy guarstes, secsity or dhe fike to or o bebadf of ge Tiimae Beneficiarias.

L.m askimgeanent lios represented that, o the best ofits knowiedge sl eliof, o fisnds bive been received by the Comgany from sy persans or entities, lachulinig Foeelg satities (Taudiog Patics™), with
. whether recorded i writing or stherwise, that the Comprny shall:

. d.mdr ey, el or mmvest in ollier persnus o emties identifisd iy mamer whatsoever [“Ulinale Beaefeimes™) by or on behalf of tbe Fundng Paty or

= provide sy guarantes, secnty or the like fram or on behsd{ of the Ulsimase Benehicanes

Ehasing Hee yorr 2024-25, the Congpasmy hios enmed profit om ncsoust of 'ssbe of unsguoted equity shimes” and recovery of bad debts’ as detslled i ‘exception] items Note no 5,04 md 17 respectively and
necardingly, the result of the Cansprasy for dve aforesaid peried is positrve. Thersfore, s shovid not be faken s indicatar of Compamy's performance during Forths aming periods. The Company wonld frve
tncurved loss for the aforessad pesiods i1 the meomes & alorseaid weie not camed,

The Midstry of Corporate Affsirs (MOA) bhas izned a otificaion (Compaies (Acosuts) Amesdusent Bules 2001) which i effective from Aptil 01, 2013, ctates fint every coumpany whicls uses socounting
snfbware for maintsng its books of sccon shull e ondy the ascounting softvnre where Siere is feabe oF recording wadit trazl of ench and every ransnction, and Further cresting an edt log +f each chinge
nade to backs of scsoumt slong will the dnle when mch changes ware made s snsorisg hat mudst sl can ot be drsnbled. The Company vees MAGIC woftwars for maimtnng bosks of acommé | which
does not bave a festire of recontng andit tral (st log) facilny,



28.28 The nature of pending litigations has been disclosed in Note 28.10. However the impact on the financial position of the Company is not ascertainable
for the present. for the reasons as mentioned therein

28.29 The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material forseeable losses.

As per our report of even date
For M/s Sriramulu Naidu & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. ; 0089758

Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- T. Narayan M Pai Vinoda Sherigar
CA Sriramulu Naidu Managing Director Director
Partner DIN: 00101633 DIN: 07224755
Membership No. : 018244
UDIN:25018244BMGETZ6698
Manipal
30-May-25 Sd/- Sd/-

Srikara Mallya Hari Shankar Shukla
Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary

M. No. : A67963

Manipal Manipal
30-May-25 30-May-25



Schedule to the
Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of
Non Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms(Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998

Manipal Finance Corporationn Ltd, Manipal

As on 31st March, 2025

(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars

Liabilities side:

Amount
outstanding

Amount
Overdue

(1

Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid

(a) Debentures: Secured
: Unsecured
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper
(f) Public Deposits
(g) Other Loans (subordinated debts, working
capital loans)

Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures |. E.
debentures where there is a shortfall in the
value of security
(c) Other public deposits

Assets side:

Amount
outstanding

(before provisions

(3)

Break up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables (other than those included in (4) below):
(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured (including debtors)

2,036

(4)

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities
(I) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:
(a) Financial lease
(b) Operating lease
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii) Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments:(Stock in trade considered)

1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity ( Rs 1000)
(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual Bonds - ICIC| Prudential Plan
(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

cCoooQo




2. Unquoted (Stock in trade considered)
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual Bonds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

Long Term Investments:

1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual Bonds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unguoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual Bonds
(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify) - IDBI BONDS

Interest accrued on Investments

Fixed deposit with Nationalised Banks

cocoa®©”

goaoao

(=== o]
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Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock on hire

and loans and advances:

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

oo

(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties (*)

Total

oo|o|lo|lo

o|lo|jo|lo|o

securities (both quoted and unquoted):

Category

Market Value/
Break up or fair
value of NAV

Book Value
{net of
provision)

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total

o|oojo|o

[l Lol (= (]

(8)

Other Information

Particulars

Amount

(

Gross Non - Performing Assets

NIL

(a) Related Parties

NIL

(b) Other than related parties

NIL

(ii)

Net Non - Performing Assets

NIL

(a) Related Parties

NIL

(b) Other than related parties

NIL

(i)

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

NIL

oo |C D (o




FORM B

(For Audit Report with modified opinion on Annual Financial Statements)

1. [ Name of the Company Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd
] B CIN : L65910KA1984PLC005988

pd Annual financial statements for the year 31" March 2025
_ended

3. | Type _ng_mi:t_:w_aM_lc_allon_ - Qualified Opinion
la. | Frequency of qualification Same as qualified last year.
l | (SI.No.1 of the annexure is repetitive since
| | 1999-2000)

|

B Draw attention to relevant notes in the annual Reference to Notes to Accounts: Note 28.01

financial statements and management

response to the gualification in the Directors

! | Report.

of Notes to Accounts of the Audited
Financial Statement for the year ended 31"
March, 2025.

| 6. | Additional comments from the board/audit
| committee chair

-do-
A

7. | Tobesigned by o
e CEQ/ Managing Director

e CFO
® Auditor of the company

s Audit Committee Chairman

L

v — e

~

|

For Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

( /’ —_— A "
T Nrayan M Pai (DIN 00101633)
Managing Director

”

For Sriramulu Naidu & Co,
Chartered Accoufitants
Firm Registratiof) No.008975S

//‘ .
4 -
Chairman of Audit Committee / CFO

Place : Manipal
Date : 30" May 2025

&
ca riramt\llu Naidu

Partner
Membership No. 018244

Place: Manipal
Date: 3p~0S5~ 205



Annexure

Extract from Auditors Report 1o the Members of Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.

Basis for the qualified opinion:

i

We draw attention to Note No.28.01 of the financial statements. The Company has incurred losses and its
majority of funds are blocked in Non Performing Assets, raising a doubt about the Company to continue as a
going concern. The account, however have been prepared on a “going concern basis” in view of management
perception as detailed in Note No.28.01 as aforesaid. In this connection, we are unable to comment on the
ultimate realisebility of the Company's assets including Property, Plant & Equipment under lease. Accordingly,
we are also uneble to comment on the Company’s ability to settle its liabilities.



Statement on impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified o

ANNEXURE 1

Audited Financial Results — (Standalone and Consolidated separately)

Statement on Impact of Audit Quali
[See Regulations 33/52

Name of the Company: MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LTD

(CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988)

l.

fications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025.
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations (Amendment), 2016},

pinion) submitted along-with Annual

| S.No. | Particulars

Audited Adjusted '
l Figures (as Figures (audited
i reported figures after 'I
| before adjusting for |
adjusting for | qualifications)
| | _ ) gualifications)
| 1. Turnover/ Total income Not Applicable | Not Applicable
[2. | Total Expenditure _ B Not Applicable | Not Applicable |
[ 3. Net Profit/(Loss) Not Applicable | Not Applicable |
S -Earllm_g-, Per Share Not Applicable | Not Applicable
s, [ otal Assets ) _ Not Applicable | Not Applicable
6. | Total liabilities o Not Applicable | Not Applicable
7. | Networth Not Applicable | Not Applicable |
8. Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate by the | Not Applicable | Not Applicable i

l | management)

Audit Qualification (each audit gﬁaiification separately):

a. Details of Audit Qualification: Enclosed
b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion

—

c. Frequency of qualification: Same as qualified last year. (SL.No.1 of the annexure is

’ repetitive since 1999-2000)

d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by

Views: Not Applicable.

the auditor, Management

€. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:
(i) Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification: Not Applicable.
(i) ' Management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: Not

Applicable.

year ended 31" March, 2025)
(i)

(refer Note 28.01 of Notes to Accounts of the Audit

Auditors” Comments on (i) or (ii) above: Notes to audited financial

stated by the Management in (ii) above is self-explanatory,

ed Financial Statement for the |

statement as ‘




1. Signatories:

‘ e CEO/Managing Director X —_—— |
. » CFO X Qy’

J J L)

* Audit Committee Chairman X

| ; * Statutory Auditor X

Place: Manipal
Date: 30" May 2025




